Public Document Pack

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 23rd February, 2016 at 7.30 pm
Venue: Conference Room,

The Civic Centre, Silver Street,

Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA

MEMBERS

ENFIELD

Council

Contact: Jane Creer / Metin Halil
Committee Administrator

Direct : 020-8379-4093 / 4091
Tel: 020-8379-1000

Ext: 4093 /4091

E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.qgov.uk
metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

Councillors : Dinah Barry, Lee Chamberlain, Jason Charalambous, Dogan Delman,
Christiana During, Christine Hamilton, Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy
(Vice-Chair), Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon (Chair)

N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting
should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be
permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis.

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 22/02/16

AGENDA - PART 1

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the

agenda.

FEBRUARY 2016 (Pages 1 - 8)

MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 26 JANUARY 2016 AND 9

To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meetings held on

e Tuesday 26 January 2016
and
e Tuesday 9 February 2016


mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/

10.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO.190) (Pages 9 - 10)

To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways
& Transportation.

4.1  Applications dealt with under delegated powers. (A copy is available in
the Members’ Library.)

15-03684-FUL - 654 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD EN3 6LZ (Pages 11 -
30)

RECOMMENDATION: Refusal
WARD: Turkey Street

15-04736-FUL - 2A/2B PARK AVENUE, LONDON N18 2UH (Pages 31 -
62)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions and S106 Agreement
WARD: Edmonton Green

15-05782-FUL - 125 BOURNE HILL, LONDON N13 4BE (Pages 63 - 72)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions.
WARD: Southgate Green

15-05783-FUL - 125A BOURNE HILL, LONDON N13 4BE (Pages 73 - 80)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions.
WARD: Southgate Green

16-00009-HOU - 17 ORPINGTON GARDENS, LONDON N18 1LW (Pages
81 - 88)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions.
WARD: Haselbury

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(There is no part 2 agenda)



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 26.1.2016

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 26 JANUARY 2016

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Dinah Barry, Lee Chamberlain, Jason Charalambous, Dogan
Delman, Christiana During, Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal,
Derek Levy, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon

ABSENT Christine Hamilton and Anne-Marie Pearce

OFFICERS: Andy Bates (Planning Decisions Manager), Sharon Davidson
(Planning Decisions Manager), Bob Griffiths (Assistant
Director - Planning, Highways & Transportation), Andy
Higham (Head of Development Management), Catriona
McFarlane (Legal Representative) and David B Taylor
(Transportation Planning) Jane Creer (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Approximately 20 members of the public, applicant and agent
representatives

336
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Simon, Chair, welcomed all attendees and explained the order of
the meeting.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hamilton and Pearce
due to a clash of meetings; and apologies for lateness were received from
Councillors Chamberlain and Charalambous.

337
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

338
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 17 DECEMBER 2015

AGREED the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 17
December 2015 as a correct record.

339
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 167)

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways and
Transportation (Report No. 167).

- 268 -



Page 2
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 26.1.2016

340
15/05021/RM - CHASE FARM HOSPITAL, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD,
EN2 6JL

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, clarifying the
application and the four conditions for consideration.

2. The recommendation was incorrectly worded and would be corrected.

3. Members had received a briefing leaflet which helped put this application

in context on the wider site.

4. All reserved matters in relation to the housing and school sites were yet to
be discharged and would be presented to a future Planning Committee in
due course, as and when the relevant land parcels were released.

5. Officers’ advice in relation to the amount and quality of healthcare
floorspace to be provided.

6. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers.

7. Officers were urged to continue to push for improved public transport
provision.

8. Councillor Chamberlain arrived at the meeting, but having missed the
introduction to the item, took no part in the vote on the application.

9. The officers’ recommendation was supported unanimously by the
committee.

AGREED that subject to the completion of a Deed of Variation to the agreed
S106, the Head of Development Management or a Planning Decisions
Manager be authorised to grant planning permission.

341
15/05576/RE4 - 65-69, ORDNANCE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 6AQ

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, clarifying the
proposals, and the wider Council initiative known as ‘Small Sites 2’, and
the reasons for the officers’ recommendation.

2. The concerns raised by an affected resident in Beaconsfield Road had
been addressed.

3. Members’ discussion and questions responded to by officers.

4. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation.

AGREED that planning permission be granted in accordance with Regulation
3/ 4 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to
completion of a Unilateral Undertaking that shall include, but not be limited to,
contributions to tree planting off site, and subject to the conditions set out in
the report.

342

15/04518/FUL - FORMER MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY CAMPUS, NOS. 188-
230 (EVEN) (EXCLUDING NO.228) PONDERS END HIGH STREET,

- 269 -



Page 3
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 26.1.2016

PONDERS END LIBRARY AND ASSOCIATED PARKING AREA -
COLLEGE COURT, ENFIELD, EN3

NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, clarifying the
proposals, phasing and land ownership issues.

2. An update note had been provided to Members on issues identified
throughout the report that had not been fully resolved at the time of writing.

3. Transport for London (TfL) had identified the need for parking surveys of
the College Court car park to ensure that the car park would operate with
sufficient capacity and that no queuing would occur onto the highway. The
applicant had confirmed that they would carry out the parking
accumulation survey in parallel with the Stage 2 referral to the GLA. TfL
had also highlighted the possible need for bus stop improvements. This
was already accounted for in the High Street public realm works.

4. Councillor Charalambous arrived at the meeting, but having missed the
introduction to the item, took no part in the vote on the application.

5. Members’ short debate, and questions responded to by officers.

6. The Chair's suggestion that a post planning permission site visit be
arranged in the summer to include the new secondary school and
converted Grade Il Listed Broadbent building.

7. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation.

AGREED that subject to referral of the application to the Greater London
Authority and the completion of a Section 106 Agreement, the Head of
Development Management / a Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to
grant planning permission, subject to the conditions set out in the report.

343
FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED that to manage the meetings and agendas more effectively, there
was a need to hold a meeting of the Planning Committee on the next
provisional date of Tuesday 9 February as well as Tuesday 23 February 2016.
It was unlikely that the provisional date of 8 March would be required.

- 270 -



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 9.2.2016

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 9 FEBRUARY 2016

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Dinah Barry, Lee Chamberlain, Jason Charalambous, Dogan
Delman, Christiana During, Ahmet Hasan, Jansev Jemal,
Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon

ABSENT Christine Hamilton and Derek Levy

OFFICERS: Andy Bates (Planning Decisions Manager), Andy Higham
(Head of Development Management), Catriona McFarlane
(Legal Representative) and David B Taylor (Transportation
Planning) Jane Creer (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Approximately 12 members of the public, applicant and agent
representatives
Councillor Andy Milne, Grange Ward councillor

384
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Simon, Chair, welcomed all attendees and explained the order of
the meeting.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Levy due to a clash of
meetings, and from Councillor Hamilton.

Councillor Savva acted as Vice Chair in the absence of Councillor Levy.

385
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

386

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 186)

RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways and
Transportation (Report No. 186).

387
15/03316/FUL - THE FORMER GREEN DRAGON PUB, 889 GREEN
LANES, LONDON, N21 2QP

NOTED

- 339 -



hwn

No o

Page 6
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 9.2.2016

The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager clarifying the
application site and projection of accurate plans on the screen. The
proposals and key considerations were summarised.

The deputation of Mr Mike McClean (Save the Green Dragon campaign).
The statement of Councillor Andy Milne, Grange Ward councillor.

The response on behalf of the applicant by Ms Maxine Spencer (resident
of EIm Park Road and business owner of Pounds TV), Mr Chris Goddard
(Director, DP9, planning advisers), and Mr Daren Humphrey (Acquisitions
& Development Manager for Waitrose).

Officers’ comments in response to points raised.

Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers.

The Case Officer to discuss the precise wording of the conditions, as far
as they relate to servicing, staff travel/parking and deliveries, with
Transportation colleagues.

The officers’ recommendation was supported by a majority of the
committee: 8 votes for and 2 abstentions.

AGREED that planning permission be approved subject to the conditions set
out in the report and the completion of a S106 Agreement.

388
15/05074/HOU - 56 HAMILTON CRESCENT, LONDON, N13 5LW

NOTED

1.

No kW

8.

The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager clarifying the
proposals and the planning history of previous unacceptable applications.
The application was brought to committee for determination in accordance
with the scheme of delegation because the agent occasionally works for
the Building Control team within Development Management.

The deputation of Mr Keith Maxwell, neighbouring resident.

The agent had confirmed he did not wish to speak in response.

Officers’ comments in response to points raised.

Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers.

An additional informative to be added reminding the applicant that the
materials should match the existing building.

The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation.

AGREED that planning permission be approved subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

389

15/05311/HOU - 78 CENTRAL AVENUE, ENFIELD, EN1 3QG
NOTED

1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager clarifying the

proposal.

- 340 -



Page 7
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 9.2.2016
2. The application was brought to committee for determination in accordance
with the scheme of delegation because the agent occasionally works for
the Building Control team within Development Management.
3. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ recommendation.

AGREED that planning permission be approved subject to the conditions set
out in the report.

- 341 -



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE: AGENDA - PART 1 ITEMm 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE
23.02.2016

REPORT OF:
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways and Transportation

Contact Officer:

Page 9 Agenda Item 4

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015/2016 - REPORT NO 190

SUBJECT -

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Planning Decisions Manager
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841

4.1

APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF

4.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 131 applications were determined

between 29/01/2016 and 11/02/2016, of which 104 were granted and 27
refused.

4.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library.

4.2

Background Papers

To be found on files indicated in Schedule.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY
ADVERTISEMENTS DEC

On the Schedules attached to this report | set out my recommendations in
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements. |
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting.

Background Papers

(1)

(2)

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the London
Plan (March 2015), the Core Strategy (2010) and the Development
Management Document (2014) together with other supplementary
documents identified in the individual reports.

Other background papers are those contained within the file, the
reference number of which is given in the heading to each application.



This page is intentionally left blank



Paqe 11 A cnonda o E

L4 \3L’I AL TLOTITT

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd February 2016
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, Andy Higham Turkey Street
Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson

Ms M Demetri
Ref: 15/03684/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 654 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 6LZ,

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing building and erection of a retail food store (A1) with ancillary staff
facilities and office accommodation, provision of car parking spaces, cycle parking, trolley bays and external
plant works, together with closure of existing vehicular access on Hertford Road and alteration of vehicular
access to Unity Road.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mr Sean Lafferty Mr Sean Lafferty

807-829 Longbridge Road 807-829 Longbridge Road
Dagenham Dagenham

London London

RM8 2BD RM8 2BD

United Kingdom United Kingdom
RECOMMENDATION:

That the application be REFUSED on grounds.




Page 12

Ref: 15/03684/FUL LOCATION: 654 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 6LZ,

North

®

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

Council

ENFIELD




1.0

11

1.2

13

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

2.0

2.1

2.2

Page 13

Site and Surroundings

The former Co-operative store is set to the rear on its respective plot with
customer parking to its front. The store itself is single storey with a pitched
roof. There is a vehicle access off of Hertford Road to the store, which is only
used by delivery/service vehicles. There is an access off of Unity Road,
which leads to the customer car park and is only used by members of the
public.

The application site lies within the Enfield Wash Large Local Centre. It is a
key gateway site to the stretch of commercial frontages due to its corner plot
location with Hertford Road and Unity Road.

The eastern site boundary is formed by the A road, Hertford Road, and its
northern side is bounded by Unity Road, which in all other respects is a
residential street. The land to the immediate rear of the site (Dairy Close) is
also residential.

To the north, the surrounding area is mainly housing from the inter-war and
later periods, typically characterised by tree-lined streets and two storey,
semi-detached houses with rendered walls and hipped roofs. To the south,
the housing is generally Victorian and Edwardian terraces.

On the diagonally opposite corner of the Ordnance Road junction is the
Ordnance Unity Centre which offers a range of facilities and services,
including library, doctors surgery, dental practice and community centre.

The site is not in a Conservation Area and the building on the site is not a
Listed Building.

A key consideration here in determining the form of development appropriate
for this site is that it is subject to site specific guidance in the Council’'s North
East Enfield Area Action Plan (NEEAAP) which provides a comprehensive
planning framework and identifies opportunity sites for redevelopment in
North East Enfield. The NEEAAP aims to ensure that new development
proposals bring real benefits, particularly by delivering sustainable
communities, high quality environmental improvements, housing, affordable
homes, jobs and community facilities. The site is labelled as Policy 14.2:
Redevelopment of the Co-operative site in the NEEAAP and this policy
context is discussed further in the main body of the report.

Proposal

This proposal seeks permission for the demolition of the existing building and
erection of a retail food store (Al) with ancillary staff facilities and office
accommodation, provision of car parking spaces, cycle parking, trolley bays
and external plant works.

This proposal also includes the closure of existing vehicular access on
Hertford Road and alteration of vehicular access to Unity Road. This element
of the scheme has been subject to negotiations, originally the main access
into the site was Hertford Road and Unity Road was to be closed.



3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

41.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

Page 14

Relevant Planning Decisions

The planning history to the site relates to the erection of advertisement
serving the existing store.

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Traffic and Transport

No objection is raised with regards to the shutting off of the existing access on
Hertford Road and re-locating the access on Unity Road. This is subject to
conditions and a Section 106 Agreement to ensure the works undertaken to
the public highway is paid for and implemented. This is a total of £30,000.
Further, no objection is raised to the number of car parking spaces of cycle
spaces on the site.

However, the Senior Transport Officer notes that there is still scope to
improve accessibility from Hertford Road, which would complete the proposed
Cycle Enfield scheme. Further, there is concern with regards to safety within
the proposed car park. These matters can be resolved through removing
more car parking spaces and incorporating proper routes within the site for
pedestrians and cyclists.

Environmental Health

No objection is raised to the submitted documentation and noise mitigation
measures. This is subject to a condition ensuring that the maintenance of the
noise mitigation measures is completed twice a year and a condition
regarding arrangements for service/delivery vehicles.

Sustainable Urban Drainage

No objection is raised. The developers must demonstrate betterment in the
overall runoff rate from site as a result of the development, and must dispose
of any excess runoff through Sustainable Drainage. In the event that the
scheme was recommended for approval then this can be secured by way of a
condition.

Economic Development

No objection raised subject to Section 106 Agreement. The Employment and
Skills Strategy submitted is acceptable. This is subject to being secured by
way of a Section 106 Agreement to ensure what has been promised can be
delivered.

Thames Water

No objection raised. Subject to attaching standard Informatives.

MPS Crime Prevention and TP Capability

The Metropolitan Police have requested that the applicant adopt the
principles and practices of ‘Secure by Design’ and Complies with the physical



4.1.7

4.1.8

4.2

421

4.2.2

4.2.3

Page 15

security and design layout requirements within the current Commercial
Developments 2015 Version 2 and Secured by Design 3D display
presentations.

Tree Officer

Objection raised. There are no significant arboricultural constraints on site.
However, the proposed landscape plan is not adequate for the site. The Tree
Officer expects significant soft landscape enhancement on the site including
significant tree planting incorporating modern and sustainable tree pit design.

Urban Design Officer

Objection raised. The proposed layout is not acceptable and the lack of
landscaping is not acceptable. How the proposed store relates to the public
realm is poor. The appearance/materials and detailing of the store will be out
of context in the area and appear overbearing and superficial.

Public response

Letters were sent to 200 adjoining and nearby residents. In addition a site
notice has been displayed on site and in the local press. The scheme has
been subject to amendments. Thus two sets of consultation periods have
occurred.

The first consultation period ended on the 11"™ September 2015. Two
neighbours had objected to the scheme. Number 116 Albany Park Avenue
objected to the scheme due to local ecology and general dislike of the
proposal. Comments were also advanced regarding its poor design. Number
14A Ferndale Road also objected to the scheme due to the inadequate
access to the site by pedestrians and vehicles.

The second consultation period ended on the 28" January 2016. Only one
letter of objection has been received. This was from the owner/occupier of 5
Gilbert Street. In summary, the objections are as follows:

-Close to adjoining properties;

- Conflict with local plan;

- General dislike of proposal;

- Increase in traffic;

- Increase of pollution;

- Information missing from plans;

- Loss of privacy;

- No Opinion expressed on development;

- Noise nuisance;

- Not enough info given on application;

- Other - give details;

- Out of keeping with character of area;

- Over development;

-Acoustic report does not provide detail about noise after the store has
opened;

-Issues regarding security;

-Additional car parking is not acceptable;

-There are sufficient trolley bays on site now and should not be next to 5
Gilbert Street; and



5.0

5.1

5.2

5,3

54

Page 16

-There is already a Lidls in 1 mile of the proposed site.
Relevant Policy
The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and

therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in
assessing the development the subject of this application.

London Plan

Policy 3.9 Mixed and balanced communities

Policy 4.8 Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigations

Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon emissions

Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction

Policy 6.9 Cycling

Policy 6.11  Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion
Policy 6.13  Parking

Policy 7.1 Lifetime neighbourhoods

Policy 7.4 Local Character

Policy 7.5 Public Realm

Policy 7.15  Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
Policy 7.19  Biodiversity and access to nature

Policy 8.2 Obligations

Core Strategy

Policy 13 Promoting Economic Prosperity

Policy 16 Taking Part in Economic Success and Improving Skills

Policy 17 Town Centres

Policy 18 Delivering shopping provision

Policy 20 Sustainable Energy Use and Energy Infrastructure

Policy 21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage
infrastructure

Palicy 24 The Road Network

Policy 25 Pedestrian and Cyclists

Policy 28 Managing Flood Risk through development

Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built environment
Policy 32 Pollution

Policy 36 Biodiversity

Policy 40 North East Enfield

Development Management Document

DMD 25 Location for new retail, leisure and office development

DMD 28 Large Local Centres, Small Local Centres and Local Parades
DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design led development

DMD 38 Design Process

DMD 39 The design of business premises

DMD 40 Ground floor frontages

DMD 45 Parking Standards and Layout

DMD 46 Vehicle Cross Overs and Dropped kerbs

DMD 47 Access, New Roads and Servicing

DMD 48 Transport Assessments

DMD 49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements



5.5

6.0

6.1

Page 17

DMD 50 Environmental Assessment Methods

DMD 51 Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD 52 Decentralised Energy Networks

DMD 53 Low and Zero Carbon Technology

DMD 56 Heating and Cooling

DMD 57 Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste minimisation and
green procurement

DMD 58 Water efficiency

DMD 59 Avoiding and reducing flood risk

DMD 61 Managing surface water

DMD 64 Pollution control and assessment

DMD 65 Air quality

DMD 68 Noise

DMD 69 Light pollution

DMD 76 Wildlife Corridors

DMD 81 Landscaping

Other relevant policy/quidance

The North Enfield Area Action Plan (NEAPP)

Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Town Centre Uses and Boundaries Review 2013

Enfield Mini Holland Bid Document 2013

Section 106 SPD

Analysis

Background

6.1.1 This scheme has been subject to numerous negotiations and discussions

between all parties over the last year and since its formal submission in August
2015. The key issues that the Local Planning Authority have with the scheme
are:

e The policy considerations regarding the North East Enfield Area Action
Plan;
e Highway concerns, including access arrangements;

e Design concerns;

e Impact on the street scene, in particular due to the siting of the building;
e Impact on neighbours; and

e Failure to relate to the adjoining Large Local Centre.

6.1.2 The revised plans and details received on the 24™ December 2015 dealt with

certain elements of the issues raised during the discussions and
negotiations. However, Officers consider that there was still further work to
be undertaken before Officers could be in a position to be able to present the
scheme at Planning Committee with a recommendation for approval. On the
24th December 2015 the Agent stated that the scheme should be considered
based on the amended plans submitted. Thus, this Committee Report is an
assessment of the revised plans received on the 24™ December 2015 which
Officers are still not satisfied with.



Page 18

6.2 Principle

6.2.1 Formal stance with regards to emerging policies, including the North East
Enfield Area Action Plan (NEEAPP)

6.2.1.1 The NEEAAP has yet to be formally adopted. In this regard, an opinion was
sought to establish the weight of this policy when determining the planning
application. Appendix 1, Paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) states:

“From the day of publication, decision-takers may also give weight to relevant
policies in emerging plans according to:

= the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

= the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may
be given); and

= the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to
the policies in this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan
to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be
given)”.

6.2.1.2 Taking the above into account, the North East Enfield Area Action Plan
(NEEAAP) policies can now be afforded significant weight in determining
planning applications given the plan has been progressed through the
Examination Hearings (28" April to 1% May 2015), further consultation on the
resulting Main Modifications and the Inspectors Information Fact Check
Report is due to be published by the end of February 2016. Once this has
been received the internal process of formally adopting the document will
commence.

6.2.2 The North East Enfield Area Action Plan (NEEAPP)

6.2.2.1 The North East Enfield Area Action Plan (NEEAAP) provides a
comprehensive planning framework and identifies opportunity sites for
redevelopment in North East Enfield. The NEEAAP aims to ensure that new
development proposals bring real benefits, particularly by delivering
sustainable communities, high quality environmental improvements, housing,
affordable homes, jobs and community facilities. The NEEAPP is fundamental
to the determination of any redevelopment of the former Co-operative site.
The site is labelled as Policy 14.2: Redevelopment of the Co-operative site in
the NEEAAP.

6.2.3 Policy 14.2 Redevelopment of Co-operative site
6.2.3.1 The policy is worded as follows:

“The redevelopment of the Co-operative store and, if possible, adjoining
land for mixed-use, retail-led development will be supported. Any
redevelopment should:



6.2.4

Page 19

e create a strong, positive Al retail frontage to Hertford Road;

e incorporate a range of other uses, which may include residential, offices
and community uses;

¢ design the corner at Unity Road / Hertford Road to act as a distinctive
gateway feature to Enfield Wash from the north;

o relate the new development sensitively to existing residential dwellings on
Unity Road and on the recently developed Dairy Close site to the west;
and

e incorporate shoppers’ car parking.

The following is an assessment of whether the scheme complies with this
relevant and fundamental policy based on the bullet points in the policy.

Create a strong, positive Al retail frontage to Hertford Road

6.2.4.1In addition to policy 14.2 of the NEEAPP, DMD 25 (g) states that

6.2.5

development will only be permitted in a town centre if an active frontage is
achieved at the ground floor. As explained above, the site is situated within
the Enfield Wash Large Local Centre, as designated within the Town Centre
Uses and Boundary Review. The current store is sited 33.5m away from
Hertford Road. The proposal provides a replacement Al unit, however not in
a form that creates a strong positive retail frontage to Hertford Road. This is
because the proposal is still set back from Hertford Road by 22m. Whilst it is
acknowledged that this is closer to Hertford Road than the existing store, this
is still contrary to the aspirations and requirement of the policy which
acknowledges the existing situation, but wants there to be a positive
enhancement of the locality when redevelopment proposals come forward. In
this regard the siting of the store would not create a strong, positive frontage
to Hertford Road. In addition to this, to the front of the store facing Hertford
Road is a large number of car parking bays which would dominate the
frontage, with little opportunities to break this area up with any form of
greenery. This matter is exacerbated by the fact that the the car parking
spaces along Hertford Road tightly abuts the boundary with the public
highway. The retained slither of land between the public highway and the car
parking spaces would not create sufficient space to provide a sustainable and
established landscaping scheme. In this regard it is clear that a strong,
positive frontage has not been created and the poor design to the front does
not aid in creating the frontage to the site anticipated in the NEEAAP. The
proposal would fail under this element of the policy.

Incorporate a range of other uses, which may include residential, offices and
community uses

6.2.5.11t is acknowledged that there is currently an Al retail store on the site and the

provision of a new store is acceptable in broad land-use terms. However, the
NEEAPP develops this further by providing detailed and area-specific
policies. It aims to ensure that new development proposals bring real benefits,
particularly by delivering sustainable communities, high quality environmental
improvements, housing, affordable homes, jobs and community facilities. The
Co-operative site is identified as one of these sites and the aspiration is to
deliver a range of uses on this under-utilized site.



Page 20

6.2.5.2 The Local Plan defines optimization as “developing land to the fullest amount

6.2.6

consistent with all relevant planning objectives”. Here, the NEEAAP seeks to
optimize the site in terms of potential uses. The applicants have argued that
their operational model does not lend itself to other uses occupying the site,
but this statement does not, in itself, provide a sound justification as to why no
other uses could be provided on site. The proposal would not be policy
compliant in this regard as it would fail to deliver the aspirations of the
NEEAAP and is not of sufficient overall design quality, as explained
elsewhere in this report, in order to justify making an exception to the
NEEAAP in this matter.

Design the corner at Unity Road / Hertford Road to act as a distinctive
gateway feature to Enfield Wash from the north

6.2.6.1 The plan accompanying policy 14.2 of the NEEAPP demonstrates that the

corner of the site with Hertford Road and Unity Road is a “positive corner”. In
addition the plan gives an indication where the new frontage would be
expected to be erected. DMD 25 (b) states that development will only be
permitted if the design and siting of the development promotes visual
continuity with the surrounding built environment. In this case, the submitted
plan has been annotated to demonstrate that there would be a Lidls totem
sign 2.1m high on the junction of Unity Road and Hertford Road. As referred
to elsewhere, this would be in the context of a largely unbroken expanse of
car parking spaces. The flank elevation of the store is set back some 38m
away from the corner of Hertford Road/Unity Road. The provision of a totem
site and expanse of car parking spaces cannot be described as creating a
distinctive gateway feature, which is critical given the prominence of the site.

6.2.6.2 The store has not been designed to respond to the particular constraints of

6.2.7

the site. Rather, the flank of the building, given its length and siting, would be
extremely visible and prominent when viewed from the north. This elevation is
to have an element of glazing in it, but it would certainly not constitute a
distinctive form of development, with the remaining exposed area covered
with vinyl graphics. The applicants state that this cannot be changed and is
due to the internal configuration of the store. This may well be an explanation
for it, but it is considered that, whatever the reason is, it does not assist in
creating the distinctiveness required and, instead, detracts from the overall
appearance of the site.

Relate the new development sensitively to existing residential dwellings on
Unity Road and on the recently developed Dairy Close site to the west

6.2.7.1The proposed store is in a similar siting to the current store on site. The height

6.2.8

of the building is however lower by 1.5m in height. Notwithstanding the fact
that the development cannot be described as “relating sensitively” to the
aspirations of the NEEAPP regarding this site given that it is for the erection
of a retail store in a similar location to the existing store, no harm to
residential amenity would result. In this regard, the store is sensitive to the
residential units on Unity Road and Dairy Close to the rear.

Incorporate shoppers’ car parking

6.2.8.1 The existing site has 129 car parking spaces. The site would be providing a

total of 134 car parking spaces and there would be 4 parent and child car
parking spaces and 8 disabled spaces within these 134 spaces. This is a net
increase of 5 spaces. The Agent has confirmed that the car park will operate



6.2.9

Page 21

ANPR (automatic number plate recognition) which will give shoppers and
visitors to the Local Centre 90 minutes’ free parking, which is considered to
be a useful contribution to the vibrancy of the adjacent Local Centre. In this
regard, the proposal would be delivering a shoppers car park within the
scheme and would be policy compliant in that respect. However, as explained
elsewhere there are concerns about the visual impact of this amount of car
parking and the failure to deliver a scheme with the necessary design quality
as aspired to by the NEEAAP.

Overall

6.2.9.1 The proposal, by virtue of its siting, design, poor relationship with the Hertford

Road frontage and the Unity Road/Hertford Road corner, would constitute a
form of development which would fail to optimise the potential of the site. In
this regard, the proposal would fail to meet the aspirations of the North East
Enfield Area Action Plan, policy 14.2. The proposal would also be contrary to
policies 3.9, 7.4 and 7.5 of the London Plan, Core Strategy policies 30 and
40, Development Management Document 37 and 39 and the North East
Enfield Area Action Plan (NEEAAP).

6.2.9.2 The fact that the proposal would bring an underused site back into use and

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

provide a new store on the site is obviously a consideration that weighs in the
overall balance. The Planning Service is keen to make sure that opportunities
for growth and new employment are maximised wherever possible. However,
in this case, as explained, the aspirations of the Council are that development
should take place on the site, but that development has to acknowledge the
context of the site and that it should maximise the opportunities that doing so
provides. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that they have had account
of the Council’s aspirations, as set down in the NEEAAP, in the preparation of
the scheme and having been made aware of those aspirations have failed to
demonstrate that they are unable to provide a development that would go
much further than it currently does at the moment in order to maximise the
opportunities that the site can deliver.

Highways

DMD 25 (e) states that the development will only be permitted where by the
proposal will not have an adverse impact on safety and traffic flows or
unacceptably add to traffic and parking problems in the area. The existing
service access off of Hertford Road is to be closed. The existing access on
Unity Road is to be re-located and enlarged to be the main access into the
site by vehicles. There is to be two formal pedestrian accesses off of Hertford
Road. The main pedestrian access is where the current landscaping area is
along the flank elevation with Conservative Club.

The Traffic and Transport Officer has raised no objection to the closed access
on Hertford Road and the relocation of the existing access on Unity Road.
The closed access on Hertford Road is welcomed as is the relocation of the
access on Unity Road away from the junction with Hertford Road will allow
the safer free flow of vehicle movement. This would be subject to a Section
106 Agreement whereby the Agent would need to pay a fee of £30,000 so
that the Highways Authority could undertake the works. In addition to this, as
the existing retail store is being replaced by a proposed retail store the impact
to traffic flow will be similar not to cause harm to the adjoining public
highways.



6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

8.0

8.1

8.2

Page 22

As explained the site would be providing a total of 134 car parking spaces.
There would be 4 parent and child car parking spaces and 8 disabled spaces.
In addition to this there are to be 24 short stay cycle spaces and 14 long stay
cycle spaces. The Traffic and Transport Officer has stated that the number of
car parking spaces as well as cycle spaces is acceptable in quantitative terms
to adhere to the requirements of the London Plan.

The Officer has stated that more car parking spaces could be lost to improve
pedestrian access from Hertford Road and also provide opportunities for tree
planting or landscaping in order to enhance the appearance of the site. The
applicants have decided not to reduce the number of spaces. It is noted that
there is no pedestrian access off of Unity Road and members of the public
would be expected to walk through the car park, via the only access into the
site without a designated route. This in itself is not deemed to be a safe
feature of the site. The main pedestrian access into the site would be next to
the Conservative Club at the southern end of the site leading directly to the
entrance/exit of the store. The existing grassed area is being removed and
being replaced with hard surfacing material. Having a strong pedestrian and
cycle route into the site directly linked to the entrance/exit to the store would
aid in making the entrance/exit distinctively clear and encourage the use of
cycle spaces on the site. The Council would want to improve connections
between the site and the adjacent designated Centre for the benefit of all and
the creation of an appropriately designed pedestrian access point is critical to
this aspiration. However, the site has been designed in order to maximise car
parking at the expense of other accessibility considerations. This further
emphasizes the Local Planning Authority’s refusal on the failure to meet the
requirements of the NEEAAP.

With regards to refuse, the Agent has stated that there is to be no external
storage of refuse. Rather, as happens in other stores, refuse is contained
internally and then collected and disposed of accordingly. This internal area
is demonstrated on drawing 3377 11 C. A condition can be imposed to
ensure that all refuse remains internally to safeguard residential amenity and
to safeguard the service access into the store.

Residential amenity

DMD 68 specifically states that developments must be sensitively designed,
managed and operated to reduce exposure to noise and noise generation.
DMD 69 specifically relates to light pollution and advises that light pollution
that is harmful would not be permitted. Impact to residential amenity by the
built form and vehicle movement would be assessed under DMD 39 which
requires mitigation measures to be installed to ensure negative impacts to the
surrounding area are marginal. In addition to this DMD 25 (d) states that
retail development will only be permitted if the residential amenities of local
residents will not be harmed by way of noise, disturbance, loss of daylight or
privacy.

The flank boundary with number 31 Dairy Close to the rear is where the
proposed plant is sited and deliveries are to take place. Along the boundary
with number 31 Dairy Close is to be a new acoustic fence at a height of 2.2m.
In addition to this, there are to be individual acoustic enclosures installed
around the plant units. The Environmental Health Officer has raised no
objection to this or the submitted acoustic report. It is considered that the



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.0

9.1

9.2

Page 23

combination of these two elements would reduce noise from the proposed
plant to ensure that there is no demonstrable harm to health. As there is no
objection to this element of the scheme subject to a condition ensuring that
the acoustic enclosures will be maintained every 6 months to ensure their
effectiveness.

Currently, there are no known conditions on the site that restrict when delivery
times are to occur. This scheme would allow the opportunity to impose
conditions to ensure that deliveries are undertaken during appropriate times
during the day to reduce harm to residential amenity to those in Dairy Close.

With regards to 12 Unity Road, it is acknowledged that the sole access into
the site will be closer than the existing access into the site on Unity Road.
This however does not cause concern given that there is already an existing
access on Unity Road and there is existing parking along the shared
boundary with number 12 Unity Road. The additional service vehicle
movements, which would be restricted to two a day, would not cause
demonstrable harm to these residents.

With regards to the built form, the siting of the building is similar, albeit it is
deeper towards Hertford Road and shallower away from 32 to 35 Dairy Close.
The proposal is 1.5m lower than the existing store on the site. It is of a similar
mass and it is considered that as the proposed building is so similar, there
would be no undue harm in terms of sunlight, daylight, outlook and privacy. It
is noted that the store is to be mainly glass and there have been concerns
raised by neighbours about light over spill. It is considered that matters
regarding external light can be secured by way of a condition. With regards
to the first floor, there would be no light overspill towards Unity Road or Dairy
Close. Rather, the store has been designed to have windows facing on to the
car parking area and have a separation distance of some 25m to 45m from
the shared boundary with the Conservative Club and Elmhurst Court. Due to
the siting of the windows and the distance away, it is considered there would
be marginal harm to residential amenity.

Overall, no objection is raised subject to conditions restricting the delivery
hours to the store, that the plants be maintained every 6 months and the
hours of operation of the store be restricted.

Sustainable Development

The proposed scheme would achieve an estimated regulated CO2 saving of
37% through the use of ground source heat pump technology for heating and
cooling. The policy requirement is 35% and thus would achieve the policy
requirement. However, it is considered that the ground source heat pump
technology is not the most efficient measure to achieve the requirement. In
this instance, a condition can be imposed to ensure that the CO2 savings is
more efficient. This would not warrant a reason for refusal.

All major non-residential developments are required to achieve an “excellent”
BREEAM rating. The submitted report states that the store would achieve a
“very good” rating. This would not be policy complaint. Having reviewed the
detalils, it is considered that an excellent rating can be achieved and thus can
reasonably be conditioned. This would not be a reason for refusal in this
instance, although this is on the basis that a BREEAM rating of “excellent”
would be achieved in the event that the store were ever to be built.



10.0

10.1

11.0

111

11.2

11.3

7.0

7.1

Page 24

Section 106

As the existing cross over on Hertford Road is being closed, the existing
access on Unity Road is being altered and Hertford Road needs to be
redesigned to incorporate a new pedestrian access, a contribution of £30,000
is required. This would need to be secured by way of a Section 106
agreement. In addition to this, an Employment and Skills Strategy would be
required. This document has been submitted in draft form and the Economic
Development Officer is satisfied with its content. The contribution requested
by the Traffic and Transport Department and the Employment and Skills
Strategy have not been secured by way of a Section 106 Agreement.
Consequently, an objection is raised to the lack of mechanism to secure
these two elements.

CIL

As of April 2010, new legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sqm. The
Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced
until spring / summer 2016. In this instance the proposed development would
be subject to a £20 per square metre levy in accordance with the GLA's CIL
Charging Schedule.

The applicant has indicated that the new development would create 192
square metres in gross internal floor area (2447 sqm — 2237 sqm = 210 sgm).
On this basis, the calculation and sum arising would be as follows:

(£20/m2) x (210m2) x 274/223 = £5160.54

Should permission be granted, a separate CIL liability notice would need to
be issued. However, as the scheme is being refused, the proposal would not
be CIL liable.

Conclusion

The NEEAAP has a specific policy relating to the opportunities for
redevelopment presented by this site. It encourages the optimisation of
development by encouraging a retail-led, mixed use frontage development.
Officers have given weight to the economic advantages associated with the
scheme and the changes that the Agent has incorporated including
amendments to access and layout, improving pedestrian links to Hertford
Road and minimising the effects of the noise / air con plant on residential to
the rear. However, although there have also been revisions to the design and
elevational treatment of the proposed store, it is considered these do not go
far enough to address the Local Planning Authority’s concerns regarding the
appearance of the development and its contribution to the street-scene, urban
townscape and linkages to the adjacent Centre. The economic benefits
associated with the scheme do not outweigh these considerations. An
objection is raised to the scheme and it should be refused.



8.0

8.1

Page 25

Recommendation
That the application be REFUSED on the following grounds:

The proposal, by virtue of the siting and appearance of the building, its failure
to provide an appropriate design quality, the lack of space and opportunities
for sustainable and suitable landscaping with car parking and hard-surfacing
visually dominating the site, the poor relationship with the Hertford Road
frontage and the Unity Road/Hertford Road corner, the poor quality
connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists between Hertford Road and Unity
Road through the car park to the entrance of the store, as well as the failure
to take the opportunity to connect the site to the adjacent Shopping Centre,
would constitute a form of development that would fail to optimise the
recognised potential of the site or provide a mixed use development. The
proposal would result in a visually unacceptable form of development that
would relate poorly to the site, in particular, and the wider locality, in general.
In this regard, the proposal would fail to meet the aspirations of the North
East Enfield Area Action Plan, policy 14.2. The proposal would also be
contrary to policies 3.9, 7.4 and 7.5 of the London Plan, Core Strategy
policies 30 and 40, Development Management Document 25, 37 and 39 and
the North East Enfield Area Action Plan (NEEAAP).

A Section 106 mechanism to secure the contributions towards highway
improvements and implementation of the Employment Skills Strategy has not
been advanced and secured. This is contrary to Policies 16, 24 and 46 of the
Core Strategy (2010), Policy 8.2 of the London Plan, the Section 106 SPD
and the National Planning Policy Framework (2012).



v_<7

O uopdo - vmmoao‘_;n_ se ue|d Q_mc

s

90 L€€ _

€V © 00S:1

UseM pleyul ‘P

s

Loz Iudy 7

Page 26

L9

1G9

(1S STONRYA b
WA GPSISTELPIOXVA

LN d
30211240 paia1iny) F100d

wos ov 0og

0c

oL

3341 LNNS3HD
4 1 013N ANIAIZ0 AB GLVALLOY NGHI E:o,nm
LOWHL3Y ATIVOILYWOLNY OL SaYVT108 0]
ISy 20 3315 SST VLS G3TIA SLONGD SunHWTA S °
(o%) We'z LHOIH LHOITH 0L
SS300V 3LIS LHOIZH WINOOL L ‘VIA WINOOL JON34 ¥38NIL TIVM ONINIVLIY
NVI¥LS303d MIN SIYLNIO WW0OYL XV LV SaHV1108 Q30¥vV08-350710 M3IN
713318 SSTINIVLS A3 T4 ILIHONOD 2751 THONYOAS M3aN
NOWLYOI4I03dS 101 OL .
vl 33N HIFNIL MIN e LHoRn ONLSDS
Q3Qy¥v08-3S010 m
HLVd1004 M3N LONYLSNOD ONILSIX3 )23
G3/0N34 38 OL SS300V
3LIS SAYMHOIH ONLLSIX3
o WZZ LHOIH
o 8 3ON3J HISNIL
o 0304V08-35010
cov 660 =N
'SONVLS 31040 ’ ~
AVLISONOT [ C N ey o) /e
g R o0 LHOIZH OOy
0 | g TTYM SNINIVL
o5 0 g MaN
. N s N 901
o SONVLS 3T0AD 2y d < ® 007 005
AVLS-LHOHS £ o
g =
by o & 3
Sy By . o
& o > { 5
N bo gl
. \ s N
A
S, : \
- g SN 6502 e
00, .
& & .
o &
6702 | LHOI3H WW00L
L, 'SS300V LIS & ” i % , TIVM az_zzﬁm
e - & ) 30 \
. S 7
T — . 0 / \ \ 14100
P o .
IV 33N HIBNLL MIN %% \. , ' 113A01
o . o
2, , &, py g 90}
, . To 'SONVLS 31040
S . . AVLS-ONOT
g
J \\
o
B e
A = BE S b
e < N WZZ LHOISH
. 5 , K N s
< , )/ /& 3Q4V08-35010
&, . Ths M3
S5 2N
TIVM ONINIVLIY
2 & N ~ . MaN
~ N T % 'SYIWVIE YO0 V1d
I§) SN ., RS NO LINN ¥00GLNO S¥A
~ NINOOE “LHOIZH S N
N // h/ [ TVM oz_z,ﬁwm R Lo
<9 >N NN V- mmﬁi W% S G3HSITON3A 38 OL 3HOLS ONILSIXI
% NN ? e ) b 40 NOILISOd 3L¥DIANI S3NIT GIHSVA
& S ¢ 1 c- S 5ive
WZZ LHOITH 13H IN00. R i
& D 30Na4 BaaNIL VM ONINIVLIY n q () HLNIMd 313¥ONOD NO SLINN dNNd LV3H
Q30¥VOE-3S0TD MAN S N //
Man R \ ® ‘SLINN diWNd 1V3H NV
y 8 SLINN ¥3SNIANOD GNNOHY G TIVLSNI
FYLNIO ALINN /Y / A 3 od 38 0L S3¥NSOTONI DILSNOOY VNAIAIGNI
3ONVNOYO 5 () WINLS6S X (W) WI0OLZ 5 oo™ .
39VKI9IS 3)v0dN00 WALGL 101 MIN o
\ . L $9J0A0 7| Bunied ajoAo Aeys-buoT]
Z 3
&
: ® 3 $919A9 pZ Buped ajoko Aeys-poys
7 ®, JE— o
K N TIVM ONINIVLZY saoeds el vioL
- ~ & MaN —_
/zoEDE_owaw a1 oL & 4 o
d 3ANM HIBWIL MIAN WZZ-LHOI3H
~_ < JNSOTONS INVId WNH3LX3 14 PIlyo 3 Jusied
/ // ~ \ 0L 3ON34 DILSNOIY MIN
S
M - 8 pajgesiq
T H -~ ~__ &
m S HIYH1004 M3N 190M1SNGD SSs L piepuels
SON
\d ‘a3L¥0013Y 38 0L SSIO0V- / SSES
5 3UIS SAVMHOIH ONLLSIE S ONIMYVA
O ONISSOMO NVIHLS3A3d OL| 4
%\aﬂ = SONIAVA FNLOVL M3N w bs gze ISERVE(S)
Ty . wbs  gzE'T puUNOID V39
% w bs ¢ 10
. O VA4 &4 [EJ0L VIO
. . QV\O » wbs 66l 114 V19
P 1Y, wbs  grzg pUNOID VIO
2y \<\v
4y (sa10e 26°L) BULL'O eale ajg

\ AT -

NOILYAQONWNODJV 40 3TNA3HOS



L

11€€

pesodold S Ue|d J0O]4 punoly

Sumeiq

v © 0021

GlLog ludy

ysep pleyul ‘ipi

T

woe

HJHLEGE—MJN
&8&&&@ paia1oy) 100

ol

w bs

w bs

w bs

w bs

w bs

w bs

w bs

w bs

189

g9

vyl
goe
L
8'LL
905
g'es
eeLy
yer'L

82€C
8vz'e

suonued jeusaju)
210}S
uonenau)
Aumn
)0 ‘om 2l|qnd
Eelile]
S19]11yD [euonppyY
asnoyalep, Aieveg
daid Aiexeg
asnoyasepn
eale saleg

punoib y39
punolb v|9

AIM - NOILYAOWNODJY 40 31NAIHIOS

I [RT (NImnimin

Page 27

= sl
|
301440 ISNOHIYVM \\ //
[
] T e AT T T T A L
\,Y\Lvl_; W—A _
= i —
. NPT , ] = [ ] M ,,,,
L V3V S31VS ‘ Um ‘ L I
| -]
L H_ \
L H M ,,,
— [
I —
i — [
i — [
m [
I W H 0€5v H_ \\\\\\\\\\
I S ||
OOO.V@ w AVE AY3AIT3A
__ vaYy 3SN43yY
e e —— I I = I I e ————— [




Page 28

oi zL

11€€

[9)

pasodoid Se ueld 1004 }sdi4

v © 002}

G10zZ [udy

Usep pleyu3 ‘Ip:

3 14N0D NOLLYA¥HSHO §
PLOXVA 08S0ST €Lv10 7141

A1LLVd

&o&:\&c w&&é% T100d

woe

w bs

w bs

w bs

wbs

w bs

%

ol
€9 suoniped [eusayu|
v'ae uonenaIIy
0oL ESLTIETR
€9zl 0]8 ‘OM ‘eale aJeyop
ove Eilllle)
661 VIO

ATM - NOILVAOWNWODIJV 40 IT1NA3IHOS

2 - 5
WOOY V1S 301440

= IS

mu M aion

f=n o
fo QOd IONVHLNI 3¥OLS

0902 // 5493 SMANVITO __ __

B HOAIdy00

SM10 om oM SHT10 kd

4 El 4] W NO31 @ WOOY "Ll
s a
ove <
00}2 1§ oore 0052 08¢

o

AL




Page 29

8l

11€€

USSUO) UaHI M IO 1

aonpoidal 5q 100 TSl FUTAE

uQ® _
pasodold Se uoneAs|g 1SeA\-YLION woz

v © 002:1

G0z udy

apag

g

ysem plauuz ‘|pi

wfo1g

AT [dl MTOAANS HOIMSI THHYULS SHONIA 8 LANOD NOLLYAIHASHO ¢
soramedpurajood@ew TVIN-G - 6¢S1€C ELFI0 XV 08SOET €L710 “THL
12911 Py u-—oom

. 'SLINN dANd LY3H ANV
SY34V38 MO0 Vd SLINN ¥3ISNIANOD ANNOYY A3 TIVLSNI
NO LINN H00dLNO J8A 38 OL1 S3YNSOTONI DILSNOJV TYNAIAIANI

ol

20/ v ‘Aei9 ejydels ul saLsAIep 10}
JOOp [euO1}08S pue sioop adeose |eulaixe [88)s

SHOO0d TYNI3LX3

'¥20. vy ‘Aa19 snydels) ul wayshs paze|b
2|qNOop ‘palE.) WNjuIWN|e PaJeod J8PMOd

SMOUANIM ANV AG9071
LIX3 / IONVYHLNT 'ONIZV1O LNOY4dOHS

ysiul 9006 vy JoAlis Ul
Buijood J@eys wniuiwn|e wess Bulpueig

4004

'9006 VY ysiuy oljjejawl JdAjis ul
puoqoon|y W Yim Buippelo ussiosulel
| wopaal4 swalsAg Buip|ing AoeT g ysy

"8€0Z vy A816 ur yyuid [9As] moj yim
0106 TvY @)ym pajuted Jopual [eJoUIL WWQZ

STIVM

SIVIY3LVIN d3S0d0dd

NOILVAZ13 LSAM-HLHON

aov wo'gl INITWNLYa

"HANId 313-¥ONOD NO d3LNNOW
SLINN ¥3SNIANOD VN3 LX3

———— "TIVM ONINIVL13d M3N

0829

"TIVM AYVYANNOE ONILSIX3

VIOSY4 40 dOL

WZ'C - LHOI3H
"UNSOTONT LNV TYNYE3LX3
O1 3DN34 J1LSNOJY M3AN




Page 30

3 0z 1188 z uondp - pesodoud se mco=a>m.mm
ev @ 002:1 - 5102 udy N ysep peuus ..m._,“_
A ek dEms IV SS4IYC ALV XV HGORE LL0T0 TAL E‘h
E %NQ&WQDL.G ﬁmLmuLUQU ul-oom
_
wope 0L 0

FE0L TV “RauD ayydesg u) souanap s}
300D [BUDKDES PUB SIOCP Bdecss [EWwae |98)S

SHOOO TYNHALXI

“F20L T “Aaug ayydes u) wajsks pazeB
DHGNOP 'PIWEY) WNIUILLNE PIIECD JOPMO
SMOONIM ANV ABBOT

AIX3 / IONVHLNT 'DONIZVID LNOHIHOHS

Ysiuy 9006 TV JaAps Ul
Buyoou 19eys wniuiwune wees Bupums

4004
"0006 W WSIUL DIIIEIOL JOAS Ul

| Wwopaau4 swajsks Buping Aoen B usy
"8E0L W ABub u) yuid @A) Moq LM

DLOG Tv SNYM pajured Jopus) [BIBUI WWDZ

STIVM
STVIHILYIN 03S040Md

NOILVATT3 / NOILD3S 1SIM-HLHON

“TTYM SHINIVLIH MIN

WET LHDEH
OITHVORIS01D OMULEDE

OOV S0 INM ANLYD

NOILVATT3 1SVY3-HLNOS

WVIDEV 40 0L

OOV WOl 3N NUYD

L3 [ IONVHING

B
Erl

TEL

NOILVATT3 1SV3-HLHON

TV BNINIVLTH M3N

r‘ i

OO¥ WO'EL 3NN NNLYD

NOILVATT3 LSIM-HLNOS




Page 31

ANoconda o

/4 \3\rl LA ISR A B I |

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 23rd February 2016

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning &
Environmental Protection

Contact Officer:

Ward: Edmonton

Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848 Green.

Kevin Tohill Tel: 020 8379 3841
Ray Reilly Tel: 020 8379 3579

Application Number : 15/04736/FUL

LOCATION: 2A /2B Park Avenue London N18 2UH

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing warehouse and erection of a part 3, part 4 storey block to provide 14
flats (comprising 4x3bed, 7x2 bed, 3x1 bed flats), with associated cycle/refuse storage and landscaping.

Applicant Name & Address:
Magic Home Ltd.

7-11 Green Lanes,

London,

N13 4TN.

Agent Name & Address:
Peter Ottery

112 southbury road
Enfield

EN1 1YE

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions and

completion of a S106 Agreement.




Page 32

Ref: 15/04736/FUL LOCATION: 2A /2B Park Avenue, London, N18 2UH,

El Sub 5ta

Scale 1:1250

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.

Ordnance Survey License number 100019820

ENFIELD

Council




11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 33

Site and surroundings

The application site is located on the corner of Park Avenue and Park Road
and is addressed as 2A/2B Park Avenue. The site currently consists of an
original warehouse building of 2 storeys in height with a triple apex roof. At
present the site appears to have been broken up into three individual units.
The unit on the outside is derelict; the middle unit which appears to be
occupied by a Christian church group and a 2 storey warehouse/lock up
appears to make up the third unit. Having analysed the Council planning
records there appears to be no planning permission for the use of the site for
the Christian group.

The surrounding area is mixed in nature, there is a hostel to the west of the
building (under the same ownership), to the north opposite on Park Road is a
derelict site although this site has planning permission for a development of
18 units. To the east opposite on Park Avenue are two storey houses and to
the south lies a series of industrial uses and car mechanic garages.

The site is not located in a Conservation Area and is not listed. The site has a
PTAL rating of 5 and is not located within a controlled parking zone.

Proposal

The applicant seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing
buildings on the site and the erection of a part 3, part 4 storey building to
accommodate 14 flats (comprising 4 x 3- bed, 7 x 2- bed and 3 x 1 —bed). The
building would be 9m high to third floor level and 12m high to fourth floor
level. The building would be 26.5m wide and approximately 16m deep. It
would consist of a modern design with buff brick with the 4™ floor a recessed
rendered finish. The windows are proposed as grey aluminium and the design
would also include for balconies and terraces.

The application also includes the provision of 3 on site car parking spaces
and 28 cycle parking spaces. The building is to be proposed in a mixture of
buff brick, render, glazed balconies and aluminium materials.

Relevant planning history

P12-00581PLA: Conversion of 9 supported living units into 12 self-contained
studio flats for social housing. Withdrawn.

14/04851/FUL: Demolition of existing vacant warehouse and erection of a 3-
storey block of 12 self-contained flats. Withdrawn.

P15-02002-FUL: Demolition of existing warehouse and erection of a part 3
storey, part 4 storey block to provide 14 flats (comprising 2 x 3- bed, 9 x 2-
bed and 3 x 1 -bed) with associated car parking, cycle/refuse storage and
landscaping.

This application was refused for the following reasons:

The proposed development is an overdevelopment of the site with specific
reference to the dominant scale and positioning of the proposed 4th storey. In
addition the poor design and integration of the proposed building with the



3.4

4.

Page 34

hostel building on the site and the poor design appearance of the eastern
elevation of the building facing Park Avenue overall would lead to the
introduction of a building which through its resultant prominence and
discordant form, would be detrimental to the pattern, visual amenities general
appearance of the locality. This would be contrary to policies CP30 of the
Core Strategy, 3.4, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (Revised Early Minor
Alterations) and DMD6 and DMD37 of the Development Management
Document as well as the guidance contained within the NPPF.

The provision of only 2 family sized units of the total 14 units proposed would
represent a very poor provision of family accommodation on the site and
overall would lead to a poor mix of residential accommodation within the
development. This would be contrary to policies DMD3 of the Development
Management Document and CP5 of the Councils Core Strategy.

The application has not robustly justified the failure to provide a suitable
mechanism to secure financial contributions towards off site education and
infrastructure provisions, contrary to Policies 8 and 46 of the Local Plan as
well as the requirements outlined in the Local Authority's S106
Supplementary Planning Document.

Insufficient detail has been submitted to enable the Local Planning Authority
to accurately assess the credentials of the scheme against the Code for
Sustainable Homes with an objective to meet a minimum of Code Level 4. In
this regard, the development fails to take into account the principles of
sustainable design and construction contrary to Core Policy 4 of the Core
Strategy, DMD 50 of the Development Management Document and Policies
5.2 & 5.3 of the London Plan as well as the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Other Relevant Planning History:

14/02467/FUL: 10 Park Road (Site Opposite) Erection of a four storey block
comprising 18 self-contained flats (7 x 1-bed, 7 x 2-bed, 4 x 3-bed) with
balconies, amenity area, associated access via Park Road and surface car
parking. S106 - S106 Granted with conditions.

Consultation

Public Consultations

4.1

The 21 day public consultation period started on the 23rd of October and
concluded on the 13" of June. 3 Site notice were posted close to the site on
28™ of October. The application was also advertised in the local paper. There
were no comments received from any members of the public.

Internal

4.2

4.3

4.4

Traffic and Transportation - No objections subject to conditions and S106
obligations to mitigate against parking impacts in the surrounding area.

Environmental Health - No objections subject to conditions

Housing Officer - A minimum of 6 units should be provided towards affordable
housing, 4 as social or affordable rent and 2 as intermediate.



Page 35

External

4.5 Thames Water - no objection raised.

4.6 Environment Agency - no objections raised.
5. Relevant Policy

51 Development Management Document

DMD1 Affordable Housing on site capable of providing 10 or more units.
DMD3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD7 Development of garden land

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD10 Distancing

DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
DMD47 New Roads, Access and Servicing

DMD49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
DMD50 Environmental Assessment Methods

DMD51 Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD64 Pollution Control and Assessment

DMD68 Noise

DMD69 Light Pollution

DMD76 Wildlife Corridors

DMD77 Green Chains

DMD78 Nature Conservation

5.2 Core Strateqy

SO2 Environmental sustainability

SO4 New homes

SO5 Education, health and wellbeing

SO8 Transportation and accessibility

SO10 Built environment

CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes

CP3 Affordable housing

CP4  Housing quality

CP5 Housing types

CP6 Meeting particular housing needs

CP8 Education

CP9 Supporting community cohesion

CP16 Taking part in economic success and improving skills
CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure
CP21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage infrastructure
CP22 Delivering sustainable waste management

CP24 The road network

CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment
CP32: Pollution

CP36 Biodiversity

CP46 Infrastructure Contribution



5.3

3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12
3.13
4.1
4.4
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.7
5.8
5.10
5.11
5.13
5.14
5.15
5.16
6.3
6.9
6.12
6.13
7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.19
7.21

54

5.5

Page 36

London Plan (2015) (including REMA)

Increasing housing supply

Optimising housing potential

Quality and design of housing development
Children and young people’s play and informal recreation facilities
Housing choice

Mixed and balanced communities
Definition of affordable housing

Affordable housing targets

Negotiating affordable housing on schemes
Affordable housing thresholds

Developing London’s economy

Managing industrial land and premises
Climate change mitigation

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Sustainable design and construction
Renewable energy

Innovative energy technologies

Urban greening

Green roofs and development site environs
Sustainable drainage

Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Water use and supplies

Waste self sufficiency

Assessing the effects of development on transport capacity
Cycling

Road network capacity

Parking

Building London’s neighbours and communities
An inclusive environment

Designing out crime

Local character

Public realm

Architecture

Biodiversity and access to nature

Trees and Woodland

Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework

Other Material Considerations

The Mayors Housing SPG (2012)
Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document (Nov.2011)
Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2010)

Analysis
The main issues for consideration regarding this application are as follows:

Principle of the Development;
Scale and Density;



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

Page 37

Design and Impact on the Character of the Surrounding Area;
Neighbouring Amenity;

Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units;
Private Amenity provisions;

Traffic, Parking and Servicing Issues;

Affordable Housing and other S106 Contributions;
Sustainability;

Tree Issues.

Principle of the Development

There were no objections raised to the principle of the redevelopment of the
site on the previous applications. The principle of the development would be
supported insofar as the proposal provides for additional housing in the
borough of which there is an identified need. The proposed site is in a
relatively accessible location with a PTAL of 5 and as such additional housing
should be encouraged in such locations.

Similar to the previous applications, there has been relatively little information
submitted with regards the use of the current site and whether the loss of the
current employment use would be suitable. However officers have assessed
the case on site and taking into account the relatively dilapidated appearance
of the site it is considered that the redevelopment to provide additional
residential units for the area would be the better use of the site.

In addition since the previous submissions the scheme has been significantly
improved. From the perspective of design and bulk it is much less top heavy
than the previous scheme with specific regard to the scale and form of the top
floor. This is now much more recessed and subordinate to the 3 storey
section of the building. In addition through negotiations with the applicant 4
family units are now to be provided as part of the scheme which is considered
suitable taking into account the relative confines of the site and its practicality
to accommodate family housing. The applicant has also agreed upon S106
contributions towards Affordable Housing, Education and local Highways
work with the councils appointed viability assessor. These issues will all be
referred to in greater detail later in the report.

Density and Scale

Density

6.3.1

6.3.2

Density assessments must acknowledge new guidance outlined in the NPPF
and particularly the London Plan, which encourage greater flexibility in the
application of policies to promote higher densities, although they must also be
appropriate for the area.

Policy 3.4 (Table 3.2) of the London Plan sets standards for appropriate
density levels with regards to location, existing building form, massing, and
having regard to the PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) score. From
assessing the plans it is considered a total of 40 habitable rooms would be
provided on the site which is of approximately 0.054 hectares. According to
the guidance in (Table 3.2) of the London Plan as the site has a site specific
PTAL rating of 5 in an urban location, an overall density of between 200-700
hr/ha may be acceptable. Upon calculating the density of the proposed



6.3.3

6.3.4

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

Page 38

development against this density matrix, based on habitable rooms per
hectare this development would equate to 740 hr/ha.

Therefore these results show that from a density perspective this proposal
would be slightly in excess of the recognisable density threshold for the area.

However, it must be noted that the criteria of density would not be a singular
element and would be assessed alongside other planning requirements such
as suitability of the site, scale of building/s and standard and quality of
accommodation proposed. In this case due to the tightness of the site
neighbouring amenity would also be a primary consideration.

Scale, Design Character and Impact on the Surroundings

As referred to earlier the building is proposed as: part 3, part 4 storey in
height, 26.5m wide and 16.5m deep. It would be set against the existing
hostel building which is 2 storey in height and the building would back onto
single storey industrial buildings at the rear. Opposite on Park Avenue are 2
storey houses and due regard has been given to the fact that the site
opposite on Number 10 Park Road has been granted planning consent for a
part 3, part 4 storey building.

Similar to the previous submission ref: P15-02002-FUL from the perspective
of scale it is considered that the principle of a part 3, part 4 storey is
acceptable on the site. This would largely replicate the scale and height of the
scheme that has been granted across the road at Number 10.

There were a number of issues that were raised as concerns on the previous
application, mainly in relation to the bulk, scale and prominence of the fourth
floor and the lack of fenestration and orientation of the scheme onto Park
Avenue.

On this submission the proposed 4" floor is recessed in approximately 2m
behind the main parapet wall on all elevations particularly so on the front and
side elevations which are most prominent on the Park Road and Park
Avenue. This has been achieved by reducing the number of flats at 4™ floor
level and re-accommodating one flat at ground level. As a result the proposed
4™ floor is now much more subordinate and as a result of its reduced bulk and
scale would be much less dominant. Having re-assessed the proposal on site
officers consider that the proposal has been sufficiently reduced in scale to be
deemed acceptable. In addition the introduction of additional fenestration onto
the Park Avenue elevation to complement the front Park Road elevation has
introduced an additional element of visual interest and overall a much more
balanced appearance to the development.

Due regard should be given to the permission granted on the opposite side of
Park Road at Number 10 and having assessed this proposal in line with that
permission it is considered that both developments would complement each
other. In conclusion from the design scale and character this proposed
development is considered acceptable as it would integrate acceptably into
the adjoining Park Road/ Park Avenue streetscene having regard to policies
DMD6, 8 and 37, CP30 of the Core Strategy and London Plan policies 7.4
and 7.6.



6.5

6.5.1

Page 39

Neighbouring Amenity

From the perspective of neighbouring amenity, it is considered the proposal
should be assessed against the following properties,

Houses opposite on Park Avenue.

Adjacent Hostel at Number 2A.

New Development opposite on Number 10 Park Avenue.
Industrial premises to the rear

Houses opposite on Park Avenue

6.5.2

6.5.3

The site sits directly opposite to Numbers 27 to 37 Park Avenue which would
be most affected by the development proposals. The proposed building is set
hard on the eastern edge of the site (back of the public footpath) and
therefore the proposed building would have a separation distance of
approximately 17.5 to 18m from the front elevation of the houses at Number
27 to 37 Park Avenue. The recessed 4™ floor would represent a separation
distance of 22m between the houses on Number 27-37 Park Avenue.

With respect to distancing standards it is recognised that this is below the
requirements of DMD 10 which in such circumstances would specify a
distance of at least 25m. However this refers to rear windows and in this case
it must be acknowledged that the windows would be looking out onto and
across a public highway. Officers have assessed the proposal externally from
within the front gardens of Number 37 and whilst the new building would
create an obvious additional dominance when viewed across the street, it is
not considered that it would create such an impact to warrant refusal. In
addition to this it should be noted that the proposed building would not break
a 25 degree line of site towards the sky from the ground floor windows of the
houses opposite on Park Avenue, therefore would be acceptable in principle
from the perspective of Daylight and Sunlight BRE guidance.

Adjacent Hostel at 2A

6.5.4

6.5.5

6.5.6

As referred to earlier there is a hostel directly adjacent the application site. It
sits directly west of the site between the western boundary and the railtrack
further west.

From the perspective of neighbouring amenity it is considered the proposed
development will have an acceptable impact onto the adjoining hostel. At
present to the front the two storey warehouse building sits approximately 6m
forward of the building line and the nearest adjacent windows on the hostel.
By comparison the proposed building would be sited 4.5m forward of this
building line and increase to a part 3 part 4 storey height. Whilst this would
create additional bulk laterally it is not considered that it would not create a
significant degree of additional harm in terms of blocking outlook from those
north most facing front windows. In addition as the windows are north facing it
is also not considered that it would create a significant impact in terms of loss
of daylight and sunlight.

Officers consider that the neighbouring amenity situation would improve with
the demolition of the existing rear two-storey warehouse building to be
replaced by rear gardens.



Page 40

New Development opposite on Number 10 Park Road

6.5.7

A planning application has been granted at Number 10 Park Road opposite
under planning approval ref: 14/02467/FUL. This development granted
consent for 18 flats within a 4 storey building. From assessing the proposed
plans the distance between this scheme and that granted scheme would be
approximately 18-19 metres across the Park Road. Again this is a similar
relationship to those houses on Park Avenue. However having assessed the
surrounding area, this is a relatively established separation distance and
overall officers consider that this distance would provide for a sufficient level
of separation and distances between both blocks. In addition to this it should
be noted that the proposed building would not break a 25 degree line of site
towards the sky from the ground floor windows of the houses opposite on
Park Avenue, therefore would be acceptable in principle from the perspective
of Daylight and Sunlight BRE guidance.

Industrial Premises to the rear

6.5.8

6.5.9

6.5.10

6.6

To the rear of the site lies a car mechanics yard and industrial buildings.
Having assessed the proposal against these buildings it is not considered that
there would not be any neighbouring amenity impacts. The premises are
business uses with no residential uses on site.

It is recognised that the proposed site with the rear facing windows could
have potential implications for development on the site to the rear in the
future, however this is not considered to be a sufficient reason to refuse this
current application at this stage. It is considered that any privacy impact as a
result of the proposed scheme on a future scheme to the rear would need to
be addressed on any future submission via angled or obscured windows on
that site.

In conclusion, all factors considered the proposal has an acceptable impact in
terms of neighbouring amenity to all adjoining occupiers.

Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units

Standard of Accommodation

6.6.1

6.6.2

The application proposes 3x1bed, 7x2 bed and 4x3 bed flats, 14 in total.

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan specifies that 1 bed flats should a minimum
floor area of 50sgm, 2 bed flats should have a minimum internal floor area of
61 square metres with 3b4p flats at 74 sgm or 3b6p flats at 86 sgm. All units
have been measured and verified and are above the required London Plan
standards for the respective units. From assessing the plans all units would
have useable and accessible layouts and all room sizes are acceptable with
specific regards to living/diners and single and double bedrooms. All units
would be dual aspect. It is recognised that there are units on the ground floor
relatively close to the boundary, however having assessed the situation on
site it is considered on balance that all units would have sufficient defensible
space. Flat 1 on the corner is the most exposed but specifically only in
relation to the rear terrace. A condition will be assigned to any approval
requesting final details of how this terrace is to be secured from the public
highway.



6.6.3

Page 41

There are currently no wheelchair accessible units proposed as part of the
development, however the flats on the ground floor could be adapted to all be
wheelchair accessible, therefore it is considered that this could be dealt with
by an appropriate condition.

Housing Mix

6.6.4

6.6.5

6.6.6

6.6.7

6.6.8

6.6.9

6.6.10

DMD 3 and Policy 5 of the Core Strategy seeks new development to
incorporate a mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet housing needs in the
Borough with family sized accommodation (3 bed or larger) is the greatest
area of need.

The Council's dwelling mix ratios are as follows:

1 and 2 person flats - 20%
2 bed flats - 15%

3 bed houses - 45%

4 + bed houses - 20%

The development provides the following dwelling mix:

3 no.1b 2p (21.5%)
7 no.2b 3p (and) 4p (combined 50%)
4no. 3b 4 or 5p (28.5%)

One of reason for refusal on the previous application was the insufficient
amount of family units proposed as part of the scheme. On that submission
there were only 2 family units proposed out of the total of 14. In addition there
was no justification submitted to justify the lack of more family units.

Since the previous refusal officers have had a number of discussions with the
applicant in relation to the scheme and it has been agreed that the scheme
could viably provide 4 family units. 1 of these units would be located on the
ground floor with a rear garden; the second would be located at second floor
level with 2x3 bed flats at 3™ floor level with large usable terraces. Whilst this
percentage of family units is not policy compliant it has been agreed that this
is the maximum reasonable amount that the scheme can viably provide. In
addition taking into account the access requirements and the building
envelope, 4 family units are what can fit comfortably into the scheme, having
regard to the confines of the site and the numbers flats that can be
accommodated at each respective floor without impacting on the loss of
another flat. In addition due regard should be given to the fact that there are
3x 2 bed 4 person flats proposed as part of the scheme which could feasibly
accommodate smaller family units and one of these units would also have
direct access to the rear garden area.

In addition whilst it is not of specific relevance to this case it is noted that the
scheme opposite at Number 10 Park Road has been approved with 4 family
units out of the total of 18 on that scheme.

All factors taken into account it is considered that this submission overcomes
the previous reason for refusal and that the proposed mix of units and
standard of accommodation overall is considered acceptable.



6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.8

6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

6.8.4

Page 42

Private Amenity

Since the implementation of the London Housing Supplementary Planning
Document and the introduction of the councils draft Development
Management Document, amenity space standards have been relaxed.

Policy DMD9 now specifies the requirements for private and communal
amenity space for such developments.

Overall it is considered the private amenity provisions proposed are
acceptable. Each of the proposed flats would be served by its own self-
contained amenity areas. The ground floor flats would benefit from their own
policy compliant rear gardens directly behind the proposed unit along with
front facing terraces. In addition the remaining 11 flats would benefit from
individual balconies all of which appear to be policy compliant having regard
to DMD9.

All factors taken into account it is considered that the amenity provisions
proposed is acceptable and in accordance with DMD9. Whilst there is no
communal amenity space proposed, this is a result of the tight confines of the
site. Nevertheless each individual unit is adequately served by its own private
amenity space.

Traffic and Transportation

Due to the nature of the proposal the councils traffic and transportation
department have been consulted on the application.

On the previous application there were initially reservations in relation to the
lack of car parking on the site and the resultant impact that this would have
with regard to on street capacity in the area. However upon re-assessment of
the case transport officers have provided the following account.

Officers are also aware of the fact that the parking stress on the roads nearby
is already very high. This is reflected in the local residents’ request to the
Council to introduce a controlled parking zone (CPZ) in the area. The risk of
any parking overspill from the site could however be minimised by inclusion of
an appropriate wording in the legal agreement preventing future occupants
from applying for parking permits. The outcome of any public consultation
cannot be predicted at this stage so there are risks associated with additional
parking demand and its impact on parking pressure. The creation of
additional public parking/kerbside space on street, by removal of three on site
spaces would be a good way of addressing the issue, particularly supported
with the introduction of mitigation measures contained in S106 (car club,
pedestrian and cycle improvements etc.) which support sustainable travel and
minimise car ownership. A car/parking free development could therefore be
supported on this site.

Based on the advice as above traffic and transportation department have also
recommended the following S106 contributions:

£9,333.24 towards cycle route improvements;

£15,000 towards pedestrian environment improvements, particularly focused
on access to Silver Street station, bus services in Fore Street and the junction
of Park Avenue with Park Road:;



6.8.5

6.9

Page 43

One three year car club membership per unit and driving credit of £100 per
membership (there are two car club bays within walking distance of the site);
Removal of redundant crossovers and footway resurfacing in front of the site.
Ineligibility of the proposed units from obtaining parking permits within any
future CPZ in the immediate adjoining area.

Based on this amended advice from traffic and transportation it is considered
that the application can now be accepted from a traffic and transportation
perspective subject to conditions and the above financial contributions being
secured via a legal agreement associated with the site. It should be noted that
the applicant has agreed to these highway S106 contributions and heads of
terms.

S106 Contributions

Affordable Housing

6.9.1

6.9.2

Having regard to policies DMD1 and CP3 of the Core Strategy as the site is
proposing 10 or more units (14) it should be complying with borough wide
target of achieving 40% affordable housing and a mix of tenures to reflect a
borough wide target of 70% social rent and affordable rent and 30%
Intermediate. This would equate to 6 units on this site as affordable housing.

As part of the application submission the applicant has submitted a Viability
Assessment that originally concluded that the scheme would not be viable to
contribute on-site affordable units. This Viability Assessment has been
assessed by the councils own independently appointed Viability Assessor and
it has been agreed that the scheme cannot provide on-site units but that it can
afford off site contributions of £85,000. This would be secured as part of a
S106 legal agreement with the application.

Education Contributions

6.9.3

6.9.4

Having regard to policy CP46 of the Core Strategy and the councils S106
SPD, this application would also be required to provide education
contributions towards local schools in the area.

This application proposes 3x1 bed, 7x2 bed and 4x3 bed units which would
equate to a contribution of £42,435.67 towards off site education
contributions. The applicant has agreed to these contributions which will be
secured via the S106 Agreement.

Other S106 Contributions/ Head of Terms

6.9.5

Highways Contributions of £35,724 broken down as follows:

£9,333.24 towards cycle route improvements;

£15,000 towards pedestrian environment improvements, particularly focused
on access to Silver Street station, bus services in Fore Street and the junction
of Park Avenue with Park Road;

One three year car club membership per unit and driving credit of £100 per
membership (there are two car club bays within walking distance of the site);
Removal of redundant crossovers and footway resurfacing in front of the site.



6.9.6

6.10

Page 44

Ineligibility of the proposed units from obtaining parking permits within any
future CPZ in the immediate adjoining area. (Car free)

The S106 Monitoring fees would amount to £6372.76. The applicant has
agreed to pay this fee.

Sustainable Design and Construction

Lifetime Homes

6.10.1

6.10.2

The London Plan and Core Strategy confirm that all new housing is to be built
to Lifetime Homes’' standards. This is to enable a cost-effective way of
providing adaptable homes that are able to be adapted to meet changing
needs.

The scheme appears to meet as much as possible the 16 criteria for Lifetime
Homes. However, confirmation of this should be secured by condition.

Energy/Energy efficiency

6.10.3

6.10.4

6.11

6.11.1

6.11.2

7.1

7.2

7.2

The London Plan adopts a presumption that all developments will meet
carbon dioxide emission reductions that will improve upon 2010 Building
Regulations, leading to zero carbon residential buildings from 2016. Policy
5.2 establishes a target for 2010-2013 to be a 25% improvement over Part L
of current Building Regulations

At this stage there has been no energy statement submitted to support the
application. However it is considered these energy matters can be dealt with
via planning conditions.

Mayors CIL

The size of the proposed development would be liable to a Community
Infrastructure Levy contribution as the size exceeds 100 sg.m. The net gain of
the new created floor area is 1093 sg.m , inclusive of the 14 units and the
communal staircase area.

This would result in a CIL contribution of 1093 sq.m x £20 = £21,860 X
274/223 = £26,859.37.

Conclusion

It is considered that this development proposal is acceptable. It is considered
to have an acceptable impact to the character and appearance of the site and
surrounding Park Road area. It will provide for 4 additional family units and 14
additional residential units a whole in a relatively accessible part of the
borough..

It is considered that its scale, bulk and appearance is acceptable and would
be comparable and complement the approved building on the opposite side of
Park Road. The proposed development would also have and acceptable
impact onto adjoining neighbours amenities.

The proposed development would not have a significant impact to neighbours
amenity or create unacceptable impact to highway function and safety.



7.2

8.1

Page 45

In conclusion, officers consider the scheme to be acceptable subject to the
conditions outlined as below and the completion of a suitable s106 Legal
Agreement, it is recommended that planning permission is granted.

Recommendation
That planning permission be approved subject to the following conditions:

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision
notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which forms part of this
notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

That development shall not commence until a construction methodology has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The construction methodology shall contain:

arrangements for wheel cleaning;

arrangements for the storage of materials;

hours of work;

arrangements for the securing of the site during construction;

the arrangement for the parking of contractors' vehicles clear of the
highway.

The siting and design of any ancillary structures.

g. A construction management plan written in accordance with the
‘London Best Practice Guidance: The control of dust and emission
from construction and demolition'.

PoOooTR

-

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
construction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead to
damage to the existing highway and to minimise disruption to neighbouring
properties and the environment.

The development shall not commence until details of the external finishing
materials to be used have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance.
The development shall not commence until details of the surfacing materials

to be used within the development including footpaths, access roads and
parking areas and road markings have been submitted to and approved in



10.

Page 46

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surfacing shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved detail before the development is occupied or
use commences.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety
and a satisfactory appearance.

The development shall not commence until plans detailing the existing and
proposed ground levels including the levels of any proposed buildings, roads
and/or hard surfaced areas have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that levels have regard to the level of surrounding
development, gradients and surface water drainage.

The site shall be enclosed in accordance with details to be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The means of enclosure
shall be erected in accordance with the approved detail before the
development is occupied.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory appearance and safeguard the privacy,
amenity and safety of adjoining occupiers and the public and in the interests
of highway safety.

The development shall not commence until details of trees, shrubs and grass
to be planted on the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The planting scheme shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details in the first planting season after
completion or occupation of the development whichever is the sooner. Any
planting which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five years
of planting shall be replaced with new planting in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance and ensure that the
development does not prejudice highway safety.

The development shall not commence until details of refuse storage facilities
including facilities for the recycling of waste to be provided within the
development, in accordance with the London Borough of Enfield Waste and
Recycling Planning Storage Guidance ENV 08/162, have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be
provided in accordance with the approved details before the development is
occupied or use commences.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and the recycling of waste materials in
support of the Boroughs waste reduction targets.

The development shall not commence until details of the siting, number and
design of secure/covered cycle parking spaces have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details
shall thereafter be installed and permanently retained for cycle parking.

Reason: To ensure the provision of cycle parking spaces in line with the
Council's adopted standards.



11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 47

All the units shall comply with Lifetime Home standards in accordance with
details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The
development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details
approved and shall be maintained thereafter.

Reason : To ensure that the development allows for future adaptability of the
home to meet with the needs of future residents over their life time in
accordance with Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy and Policy 3.5 of the
London Plan 2011.

Prior to occupation of the development details of the security measures to
serve the rear terrace assigned to Flat 1 shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In the interest of amenity and public safety.

The development shall not commence until a detailed 'Energy Statement' and
relevant SAP calculations has been submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Submitted details will demonstrate the energy
efficiency of the development and shall provide for no less than 11% total
CO2 emissions arising from the operation of a development and its services
over Part L of Building Regs 2010 ensuring that standard conversion factor
indicate that natural gas is the primary heating fuel. The Energy Statement
should outline how the reductions are achieved through the use of Fabric
Energy Efficiency performance, energy efficient fittings, and the use of
renewable technologies.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so
approved and maintained as such thereafter. Following practical completion
of works a final Energy Performance Certificate shall be submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where applicable, a
Display Energy Certificate shall be submitted within 18 months following first
occupation.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction
targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy, Policies
5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.

Following practical completion of works a final Energy Performance
Certificate shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to occupation of the development.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that the
Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission reduction
targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core Strategy, Policies
5.2,5.3,5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the NPPF.



GL0z ‘des et
"P¥] SBWOH uowig|ned !

8LN uopuo

SNUBAY Mied gz

|
|
Al
O E |

(m=m=w=3

Buluueld



ue|d uoneoo
3lSs

Page 49

Buiuue|d

oL

008 b1 eneibes]
0 suspseo Aeuleug 1

31va NOISIAZY SL0Z Yole  3uva 05 or
NOISIAZY PY] SOWOH UOWIS Ned  *IN3MO
L00/54°€81 ‘ON ONIMYHA 8IN Uopuol L
v @ 00011/ 2V ® 005+ 3v0s 8NuBAY yied §2 :103roNd

Kaning @aueuUpIQ Jo uoissiuuad Joud ay) Jnoypm
payquyoid i ed o SjouM Ul uoRINpoIday
/56870001 :25U30I7 ASAINS 20UBUPIO

102 1UBU aseqelep pue uBuAdoD umMoIDG

= = =
g £ H
S & g
3 g g
8 g g
s ans 13
004261
082261
008261

001¥€S
050¥€S
000¥€S

00261

05261

008261

) ubisag SY

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke

Joud nouym ajoum Jo Led ul peonpoidas Jo paidod oq

1ou lleys pue WBLAde Jepun pejosioid si Bul
&

e

IS Woy USYE} oq O] OO
“UBISaQ S 0} OB] PaHode] q 1SN SeIOUBISISUOOU
Aue pue eys U0 paxoBYD BG O} SUCISUSWID (I

sBumelp
S Jo eleds Jou og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn

TSOION



ue|d %o0|g

31va NOISIAZY

SloZwieW  3lva
NOISINIY PI] SBWOH uowig ned  IN3INO
m 500/51°€81 “ON ONIMVEA 8LN uopuol
C:.w_xm Y  00v:L / 2V @ 0021 VoS

0z 6L 8L Ll 9L GL vl €L ZL W O 6
anuany yied 82 :103ro¥d

D8 v eresbesT
8 L 9 s v ez Lo

Suapies Aaulleud |

ubiseqg sH

3NNIAY NOWOT10S

10U [leys pue 1yB11Adod Japun pejosiosd st Bumesp SIyL

‘sBumelp s ssauibus
[BINONAS WO USHE} BQ O} UOBEWLIOJUI [BINJIN.

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke
! Joud nouym ajoum Jo Led ul peonpoidas Jo paidod oq

fue pue sys U PR Bq O SUOISUBWIP

sBumelp
S Jo eleds Jou og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn

TSOION



ue|d %900|g 5102 ‘deS ‘31va NOISIAZY Sl0zWEN  3lva
v NOISINIY PI] SBWOH uowig ned  IN3INO
V900/51 €81 'ON ONIMVHA

pasodold

LN uopuol
PY ® 00v:L / 2¥ © 0021 3v0s enuany yied 82 8 2 :L03rodd

0z 6L 8L Ll 9L GL vl €L ZL W O 6

D8 v eresbesT
8 L 9 s v ez Lo

Suapies Aaulleud |

ubiseqg sH

3NNIAY NOWOT10S

10U [leys pue 1yB11Adod Japun pejosiosd st Bumesp SIyL

‘sBumelp s ssauibus
[BINONAS WO USHE} BQ O} UOBEWLIOJUI [BINJIN.

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke
! Joud nouym ajoum Jo Led ul peonpoidas Jo paidod oq

fue pue sys U PR Bq O SUOISUBWIP

sBumelp
S Jo eleds Jou og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn

TSOION



Use figured dimensions only. Do not scale of this

drawings.

Notes:

Planning

GO0 00000000000

G S
58

S

PARK ROAD

X0
TR

Eeh

Arabella House

oduced in part or whole without prior.———"

|

information to be taken from structural

|

Al dimensions to be checked on site and any
inconsistencies must be reported back to KS Design.

B
3
H
B
g
g
3
E
g
3
<
£
4
4
2
2
&
2

expressed permission of KS Design.

H
g
S
5
2
2
5

be copied or

=

Proposed
Site Plan

1:100 @ A2/ 1:200 @ A4
DRAWING NO: 183.15/007A

A
REVISION DATE: Sep. 2015

SCALE:
REVISION:

London N18
Paul Simon Homes Ltd.
March 2015

PROJECT: 2B Park Avenue

CLIENT:
DATE:

1 Chaliney Gardens
Leagrave LU4 8QQ

KS Design



I R I I R A A N ) IR IR IR

Proposed

%o
1
Ground Floor Plan

n-Suite

Bedroom
15.9.m2

4.0/m’
n
T
¢¢

in
v

/D

iving

54 |mP?
at 4
1B 2P

Terrace
lata- -

54/8 m?

Kitchen/L

1:50 @ A2/ 1:100 @ A4
183.15/010A

A

<
SCALE:
DRAWING NO:
REVISION:

| Entrance
4.3 m
o

om |3

ear
4
)]

114

Paul Simon Homes Ltd.

2B Park Avenue
March 2015

London N18

PROJECT:
CLIENT:
DATE:

(@]
4

1 TA I I IIII I I

59
[

J\

Bedroom 2
9.3|m?

\

\ilg!

Datnroor_|
LU
g/L

@

R

80.8

Kitchen/L

e
18.8

=
v

/Dining

n

2B 4P

Flat/ 2
702

14.8 m
27l9
Terrace

at

G

|

Bedroom

Kitchen/Livin
F

om |2
m

4

ar
12,

Entrance
Hall

T v

gr @ H / EIE IR IR IR SRR
H EE I I A I
H EIE IR R SRR
H FEE R I A
DRI IR IE R}
1]
= IR IR SRR
% FE IR
DRI IR}
> 33339
_E | IR IR SRR
7] © LRI
~
g Q | = < IERREREE
& o c P42
I aQ I3 |} L {, D E o aaa»aé
& 2 2 o 1 5 © = FIEIEIE
o \ : Q
(2] » 5 T 2 o E oL EEEIER =)
=) o) = = s £
ae 9 = TP =2 200 &
< [3) | =8 xn T s
o = = o L [te} =
9 o = At A AN
2 © o NI
o ~ S I
x = = FEE IR IR
c X IR I I A |
& = > EIEEE IR n
=g IR IR SRR "
o “g OO EE "
8 00} B
" . ol © ki 3343 4 n
ey EREN 5 DRI IR IE R}
/f/ N {\ = R
° |B2p= |53 I I N
S B EE I I A
§%§%: 3999999
B 4L FRERE IR
2 ¢ EIE IR
o 5= IR )
ng‘ﬁi 855 v 4 ?
_;gﬁ"’gx,g 2393333333333 33333 333930]] 2299 333359933533 3333993933333 3333339
& 5Re Scg IR 39333 A I AP I
2 s 3o 399333949933 a9
2 5 5
%3§g§§g 3333359 3
§ =28Es882 5
g Eggagd R
S ofssgeld 4
.3 29EsP58 [0
L. 8530sSgT
Q252335528 a
Lleesaz8554
Olg3°8%528% ¢
Z|IS52:235F 8% <

REVISION DATE: Sep. 2015

1 Chaliney Gardens
Leagrave LU4 8QQ



008 b1 eneibes]
5102 'deS :31va NOISIAZY 5102 Yolep 3lva S 14 € 4 2 0
ueld Joo|4 1si14 : :

suapies Aaulleuo |

NOISINIY P sawoy Sepmo_mwu AN3ITO ! i Cm_wwﬁ_ M
U@WOQO._& »Y @ 00k :_NQ\W_%% o ozﬁ«mm aém@_xam a woaroud ’ S
|
i
i
I
i
i
i
i
I
I
i
i
i
! |
Al wdg wlg: 7 A _D\._.B
ELEIE] Auoojeg soelIg) 7 wpoe
|
=
I i I % 1] i 1]
4 T I T
| F=—=—= | F=—==—= 7
> == >4 ==
LR e 1
W 8! == 2W|G[28 W Z0L |F====—== WG9
dc gl ,:, \\\\\\\ dir 8¢ drbde | @ e de|ge
81184 L¥eld ol R = G1e|d r
Wi €]S;
UII/BUINTT/UBYINY 5l I
[l
\ I
[
|
||
||

i ME [ W Wy

souenug |
\

n- weGh ez
wiooipeg 00Jpeg
7
7 Auooleg
Y 7 |
uooje 7 Auooje!

[a

uBiseq S o uaissiued passeidke
Joud Jnouym ajoum|s0 Led i peonpoidas Jo peidod oq
6u

fue pue sys ub payosuo 8q ©Of SUOSUSWI [
_ soumeip
s Jo aeos 1ol
.

g “Auo suojsuewp peinby ssn

TSOION




008 b1 eneibes]
ue 100 — )UODD 5102 ‘deS 1310 NOISIAZY 5102 Yoien alva
_n_ _H_ w v c

S i4 € 4 I 0 suspse9 Aauleyo |
NOISIAZY PI] SOWOH UOWIS INed  *LNIMD = e
Q VZILo/SL'e8L  ON ONIMYHA 8IN Uopuo] E A Cm_wwﬁ_ SH
Umwo O._& YYD 00L:L/2Y @ 05 3708 enusny ied 82 103rO¥d

.
s 7 Ui g uoojeg
aoels] 7 aoelIa| 24 0°¢|
:
A L1
5 L
w 9°¢ W e/
delge dege J
¢l leld eld
ZWI€1S g0¢
m I Q/BUINTUBYINM ml Buui/BuinijusyoNM
I
[T I
/ =
| =
|
4\
]
==t >
ey ; . |2z
{ uﬁ Wy ot e
Qouenug | r
l
m ; |
o N ®/w
n A 9t W 6[L MEB
z Woolpeg ¢ woolpsg
QMU Auoojeg
T % e
109|e: uoj|e

s

i

i

i ‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke

! Joud nouym ajoum Jo Led ul peonpoidas Jo paidod oq
6

| u

,

1ou lleys pue 1BLAded Jepun pefosio:
sl

[EINONAS WOy UsKe) 8q ) UopewlOJul
“uBiSQ S 0} Y0Bq PaLodal 8q 1SN SBPUBISISUCOU!
Aue pue eys U0 paxoBYD BG O} SUCISUSWID (I
_ soumeip
S Jo eleds Jou og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn

.

TSOION




008 b1 eneibes]
5102 'des '31va NOISIAY 5102 Yolep 3lva S i4 € 4 2 0 £
ue|d Joo|4 payL s L]

NOISINIY PI S8WOH uowis |ned IN3INO
Q VELO/GL'ESL  ON ONIMYVYA LN Uopuoq | ubiseq SY
Umwo O._& Y ®00LL/2Y ® 05k 308 NuBNY Wed 82 103rO¥d

0
SRl=ANE] | a9 m‘_w

= \ = S
2 <
== W9 w | p ==
anoqe anoffe
wBooy |~ dv 8¢ nnv g€ Wowgb
[H [H \ /
i
4
uz
sssmenenss]
wo'g w 0 . \ s
L PHPoH H-2ouenugy 5 eH souenug hih ,” 3|
il
INS-u3 4 woouy;
a160e] Agie | B P
Bijoo B0 | /
i \_/ i | N
e y L
1 |
\
wo's W 8'Z] . wg'g
Z uooipag L Wioolpag ) ulooipag
peg 4 peg 4 peg

wl9'g W0t
fiooje uoojeg

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke
Joud nouym ajoum Jo Led ul peonpoidas Jo paidod oq
1ou lleys pue WBLAde Jepun pejosioid si Bul

&

e

fue pue sys U papAY Bq O SUOSUBWIP |
_ ___ __ _m_ _ scumeip
.




6
Cm_& hoom 5102 'deS :31v NOISIAZY 5102 Yolei Alva S 14 € 4 3 0 N%Hﬁﬂ;wd

v NOISINZY ‘P¥] SSWIOH UoWIS Ined  :IN3ITO ] u m_me SM
Q WPLOGL'ESL  ON ONIMYVYA LN uopuol ! | |
Ummo ol ﬁ_ Y¥ @ 00L:L / 2V @ 05k 308 enusAy yied 62 103r0¥d

R

uBisaq Syt 4o uoissiuuad passaidie
Joud Jnouym sjoym|10 ped Ui paonpoidas Jo paidoo aq
10U lleys pue 1B

[EINONAIS WoJ USie) 8q 0} UONEWNOJUL [EINONS [y
“uBiSaQ S 0} JoBq Paodas 8q 1SN SeRUBISISUOIU!
fue pue oys UG payoRUD oG O} SuOISUSWID Iy
“sBumesp

S o eleos oy og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn
TS9JON

)
=
c
c
Ay
ol




suoneAs|3 198ils s g gy
pasodoud

8520/51L°¢81 'ON ONIMYHA
YY @052/ 2V D SThiL VoS

SL0Z YN 31vd

P¥] S3WOH UowIS ned  :IN3MD
8LN Uopuo]

enuenY Yied 62 :103r0¥d

peoy uowojog

Juswaned

peoy ied

Juswaned

D8 v eresbesT
2w oo 6 8 L 9 s v € z L 0 suapies Aaulleuo |

= ™ ™ ™ ™ ™ i ublsag SH

uoieAs|J 19a.g
pEOY UOWO|0S B SNUBAY Mled

anuany yled g2

@®

O

o

pue Aemjiey anuaAy yied vz

anueny yied g2

Juswoneq

uoieAS|] 198113 PeOY MYied

anueny led JusLaAEd anuaAy dled /€

HjEERNEEpNIN

0
i
o

I
0
I

|

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke
Joud nouym ajoum Jo Led ul peonpoidas Jo paidod oq

S Jo oleos ou og “Auo suojsuswip painby ssn

TSOION



u 61
O_Hm>®_m ”—COL H_ 5102 'des '31va NOISIAY 5102 Yolep 3lva S 14 € 4 2 0 mc:mw.mmﬁwﬂgwﬂ

. v NOISINIY P¥ S8WoH Uowis |ned AN3ITO . B
V0Z0/51°€8L  ‘ON ONIMYHA LN Uopuo] ubissg SM

waoao.._& v @ 00k /Y @ 05k 3v0s anuany yied 82 103r0Yd

peoy Jied

[ 069'9¢

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke
oy ejoym 1o ed ur peony
S puE WBLAdod Jepun pejos)

umesp syl
sBumesp s 93uibUs
[EINONAS WOy USYE) 8q O} UONEWNOUI EINONAS (1Y

“UBISaQ S 0} OB] PaHode] q 1SN SeIOUBISISUOOU
fue pue eys o pawoauo oq O} SuoisLRWID Iy

sBumelp
S Jo eleds Jou og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn
.

TSOION




D8 v eresbesT

Co_u.m>®_m .._mwm 102 100 ‘31vd NOISIAZY 5102 Uolewy aiva S 14 € z L 0 suspieD AsuleyD |
. a NOISINIY P¥ S3WoH Uowis |ned AN3ITO . ubisa

8120/5L°'€8L  ON ONIMVHA LN Uopuol E A 1S90 SH

waoao.._n_ v @ 00k / 2V @ 05k 3v0s anuany yied 82 103r0¥d

1699

o)

009C

0og

00v'C

00€

00¥'C

Page 60

00€

00’

00€

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke
Joud wnouym ajoum Jo ed l peanpo;
1ou lleys pue 1BLAded Jepun pefosio:

sl

VO yyyry e

JS Woy uSYE} oq O} UojeL
“uBISa S 0} oeq paLodal aq Jsnu

fue pue eys o pawoauo oq O} SuoisLRWID Iy
sBumelp
S Jo eleds Jou og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn
.

TSOION




uoneAs|3 1seq

8zeo/5L'esl
Y¥ @ 00L:L / 2V @ 05k

5102 10 ‘31va
El

Juswaned

5102 Yoien

PI] S8WOH UoWIS |ned
LN Uopuoy

enueny yied 82

D08 v oAb
0 suspse9 AeulieyD |

o ubisag SY

peoy xied
—
|
i
|
SIS AU
SRS IS ISV SIS SRS IS IS S TS
S SV VNSNS S SIS

> SISHS
0 S

S
USUSUSUSVS,
;

S
VSIS
S

S
VS
/S

N

Page 61

VO yyyry

uluue|d

IRERNAREENNA]

SIS SIS
SRS STSTS ST
:
o o
:
o o
____,
: o
e N
| @
: S
:
o o
:
T ____
o
i=3
o
N
N
3
S
»
i=]
I
N
S
3
=
o
5
5
INg
IN
3
S
»
@
15

‘uBisaq St o uaissiuad passeidke
Joud nouym ajoum Jo Led ul peonpoidas Jo paidod oq
1ou fleys pue WBLAdod Jepun perosioid si Bumesp sl
sBumesp s 93uibUs

[EINONAS WOy USYE) 8q O} UONEWNOUI EINONAS (1Y
“UBISaQ S 0} OB] PaHode] q 1SN SeIOUBISISUOOU
fue pue eys o pawoauo oq O} SuoisLRWID Iy
sBumelp

S Jo eleds Jou og “Auo suoisuewp peinby ssn

TSOION




Planning

Al dimensions to be checked on site and any

inconsistencies must be reported back to KS Design.
be copied or reproduced in part or whole without prior

This drawing is protected under copyright and shall not
expressed permission of KS Design.

All structural information to be taken from  structural

Use figured dimensions only. Do not scale of this
engineer’s drawings.

drawings.

Notes!

THHARR Y
TR
Py

/

A
i TR
MMW‘ THEHRHHR

Ay

A TR
i TR
AT FRETHRTY
i TR
A M it
T TRETHHHENY

TR

AT
R (W’w‘
%&}?&%&;Xm W(w
W /ﬂ*‘w

AT At
AN HTTHRHEHRE
WW L THHHTHER
g TR
fgbiiig TR
o) HA)A TVTHATL AT
A FIHRRITTY
P FTHHITHIT
i TR
g Attt
AR TR
WA TR
AT TR
(Wﬁw I i}
iy
\ FA
i
WY \\
AT |
WAL RARRRLY 1
) M{” W;W i R
Lt
Bl
\

\\
\\ T
B
IR
i
IHHEHER IR A T
i LT e e B T
A
Attt bkttt ok LA AL
e T
b bt

1 THEHHE iy

ir HE HY Ht ir
T T TR
L T T THTRHHEHH R
TN ittt b
AR TR
LT ! i
bbb TR T
B TR
R AR bt
RN g

TR TR BRI
Y Y

THAH AR T
R RHTHHA

{H}
) Y
THHH Y
- T
HHHAHHY

T
JARIN
THUTRENTHUH
i
{HHH]

e e e e T T e e T T T,
e
e e e e
e s e i
T T T T
T T T T
L L L T T T b

1

Y
\‘\\\\‘\\‘\\‘\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\‘\\\‘\\\\\\\\\\“
1

bttt =
Ihhthhttibihiihbihhii =
LR i
TN R

T TR R R

THHRHEHER Y y
R AR
RN ity i\
TR Y
T T T R
R R HHR R

fltihnttimtstiiihhighbihiibiihiibig

TR LY w—
TR by

R R

it LY

TR RR Y WY

AR IR bl

N

tHRRHE
TN
ittt
AT
it

T

TR
i
HHTHHTRY
R h
TR N
e e
T T HHHHHR T TR

TR AR
it
R R R HRET R
itddiidiihihtinhiiitbbtiihbhhhhihihitib
ittt
B R R R UHET IR
AR R T R

HHH
I

HHHH

HHT

T,
T
]
i A

T
]
T

il 'l”l

e
iy

i 7
]
It THT TR AT
ity HHHIHE i T
T e e T
e T
it e e e T iy
Al e e e e T T
e e i
it T e e b e e
A e e e e e e el e
B e e e e e e e e b
T Ittty T iy
I T T il
HHHHHHH ] T ]
gy T it iy
i

] T
i, ]

7
l”lll”l’"l I
T

i,
it
I,
e e e e e T i i i e e e
A R
et e e e e e e o
/’:,”l,”l,’lll”l,"l/':,”l,”l,’ll,’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l,’l,’l,’l,’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l,’l,’l,’l,’l,’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l.’l,’l,’l,’l,’l,’l,’
it (i W
i i
i e 1 et ]
R e e e
e i i
T
T
T
e bbby by A

A I
T
gt ittty
ity e

HHH G H ) ] ] Iy
V /
HH
HHHH ]
ey
it
AT
it Aj

/
il
i iy

HHHHHHHH T THAH]

Proposed

Front Axonometric

1:75 @ A2/ 1:150 @ A4
DRAWING NO: 183.15/040A

A
REVISION DATE: Sep. 2015

SCALE:
REVISION:

PROJECT: 2B Park Avenue
London N18
Paul Simon Homes Ltd.
March 2015

CLIENT:
DATE:

L
T
AR 12

1 Challney Gardens
Leagrave LU4 8QQ

KS Design



Page 63

Agenda Item 7

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 23rd February 2016

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham
Sharon Davidson
Matthew Thode

Ward:
Southgate Green

Ref: 15/05782/FUL

Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 125 Bourne Hill, London, N13 4BE,

PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mrs Theodora Panteli
125 Bourne Hill

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Amir Faizollahi
6 Bournwell Close

. . Hadley Wood
Winchmore Hill EN4 0JX
N13 4BE United Kingdom
RECOMMENDATION:

It is therefore recommended that the application is APPROVED subject to the conditions.




Page 64

Ref: 15/05782/FUL LOCATION: 125 Bourne Hill, London, N13 4BE,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. ®
ENF(!;ELD’ Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




Page 65

A planning application of this nature would normally be determined under delegated
authority. However, the agent occasionally works for the Building Control team within
Development Management and in accordance with the scheme of delegation; the
application is reported to Planning committee for consideration.

1.

11

1.2

13

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the south side of Bourne Hill. It has a regular shape and is
approximately 348m? in area. It contains a two-storey semi-detached property
that has been converted into two flats. It is noted the flat above at 125A is
currently seeking a rear dormer with two front roof lights (Council Ref:
15/0783/FUL).

The surrounding area is characterised by semi-detached properties some of
which have rear dormers.

Neighbouring properties No. 123 and 121 Bourne Hill contain rear roof dormers
with minimal insets from the roof ridges.

The site is not located within a conservation area and does not contain a listed
building.

Proposal

The application seeks planning permission to demolish an existing rear
conservatory attached to an original rear outrigger. The existing conservatory is
constructed of glass walls and measures approximately 4.2 metres in depth from
the original rear wall. The new rear extension being sought will measure 4.9
metres in depth and contain a single flank window. The extension will be 2.5
metres in width and measure 3.3 metres in height to the top of the parapet.

In addition, another rear extension measuring 3 metres in depth is proposed to
the rear of the original rear outrigger which will measure 3 metres in depth and be
3.6 metres in width with a height of 3.3 to the top of the parapet.

The extensions will be constructed out of matching materials, with a flat roof
form, with Velux skylights proposed on the roof.

Planning History

TP/03/1777: Rear conservatory — 11/17/2003 — Granted.

TP/04/2013: Rear conservatory (Revised Scheme) — 21.22.2004 — Granted.
SOUTHGATE_5110: Two flats — 10.03.1965 — Granted.

15/02401/HOU:

In regard to the application ref:15/02401/HOU, it is noted that this was an earlier
iteration of the current proposal and was refused. In particular, it was an L



4.1

41.1

4.2

Page 66

shaped rear extension which wrapped around the existing rear outrigger. It was
refused on the following grounds:

1.

The proposed extension would result in an excessive form of development
by reason of its size and siting, harmful to the integrity of the host building,
and out of keeping with the established character and form of development in
the surrounding area. As such the proposals are contrary to Policy 11 of the
Development Management Document and the objectives of Policies 3.14,
7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, Policy 30 of the Core Policy, Policy 37 of the
Development Management Plan and the National Planning Policy
Framework.

The single storey rear extension by reason of its excessive depth and
proximity to the shared boundary would constitute an obtrusive and overly
dominant form of development, resulting in an unacceptable loss of outlook,
heightened sense of enclosure and adversely impact daylight access to
number 123 Bourne Hill. The proposal would be contrary to Policies 3.14, 7.4
and 7.6 of the London Plan, Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, Policy 11 of the
Development Management Document and the National Planning Policy
Framework.

The current proposal has split the rear extension(s) into two elements which has
reduced the length of the extension along the boundary of 123 Bourne Hill.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

None

Public response

The neighbours were notified of the application by mail (seven letters).

5.

51

52

5.3

Relevant Policies

London Plan

Policy 3.14  Existing housing
Policy 7.4 Local character
Policy 7.6 Architecture

Core Strateqy

Policy 4 Housing quality
Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open

environment

Development Management Document




54

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Page 67

DMD 6 Residential character

DMD 13 Roof extensions

DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design-led development
DMD 38 Design process

Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance

Analysis

Principle

The adopted policies encourage the maintenance and enhancement of existing
housing stock. However, proposals must also be assessed in relation to material
considerations such as impact on the character of the surrounding area and
impact on the neighbours’ amenity.

In particular, DMD 11 is of relevance to this application. The provisions of DMD
11 seek to mitigate the form and scale of single storey rear extensions to protect
the character of a dwelling as well as the amenity of neighbouring properties. To
this end, extensions should not intrude within a 45 degree line of visibility
measured from the centre ground floor windows adjacent to the application site
or maintain common building alignment, thereby ensuring a reasonable level of
daylight access and outlook.

Impact on the neighbours’ amenity

The proposed rear extension is considered to be sufficiently separated from
adjoining property of No0.150 Fox Lane with approximately 27 metres of
separation distance. At the distance noted, the proposed rear extension will have
a subservient residential scale and will appear incongruous in relation to the
existing established bulk of the residential building on-site, which will be further
screened by existing boundary fencing. As such, the impact of the proposed
extensions on this property will be acceptable at this distance.

In relation to the property located at 127 Bourne Hill. The portion of extension to
replace the existing conservatory will be screened by the existing rear outrigger
and will not be visible from this property. In relation to the proposed 3 metre deep
and 3.3 metre high extension located off the rear wall of the existing outrigger will
be compliant with DMD 11. In particular, DMD 11 provides for rear extensions up
to a depth of 3 metres and for a height of up to 3.5 metres which this extension
would comply with. Furthermore, the extension will be in common alignment with
the rear extensions located at 127 Bourne Hill. There are no windows proposed
on this boundary common boundary which will have outlook onto this property.
As such, impact would be minimal and are considered acceptable.

In relation to the adjoining property of 123 Bourne Hill to the east, the rear
extension will be sufficiently set back from this property. In regards to the existing
conservatory which measures 4.2 metres in depth from the rear existing wall will



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Page 68

be demolished, with a new 4.9 metre rear extension being proposed. The
proposed extension will be a height of 3.3 metres which is compliant with DMD
11 in this regard, which affords up to 3.5 metres in height. Furthermore, it is
noted that the extension will be a reduction in height with the existing
conservatory having a pitched roof measuring 3.55 metres in height.

The proposed extension will be off-set from the common boundary by 0.920
metres, however the additional depth of 0.7 metres beyond that of the existing
rear conservatory will not comply with a 45 degree line taken from the nearest
adjoining ground floor window of 123 Bourne Hill which appears to be utilised for
habitable use. The proposed extension will however secure a common
alignment with the existing rear outrigger and in addition, will still be of a lesser
depth than that of the existing rear extensions at the property of 123 Bourne Hill
which measures approximately 10 metres in depth.

In this instance, when having regard to the existing conservatory, reduction in
height of the extension, similar siting of the rear extension being sought and the
depth of surrounding rear extensions, it is not considered the rear extension will
result in any further significant amenity impacts in this instance.

In relation to the proposed roof skylights, it is considered these are appropriate
and given their orientation, will not impact on any neighbouring properties
amenity.

Overall the proposed extension is of an appropriate scale which maintains the
amenity of both the original building and adjoining neighbouring properties, as
such it is considered the proposal is consistent with DMD 11.

Impact on the character of the surrounding area

DMD 6 and DMD 37 state that development will only be permitted if it is of a
scale and form appropriate to the existing pattern of development having regard
to the character typology. The proposed extensions would be located to the rear
at ground floor level and would not be visible from the highway; therefore it would
have no impact on the character and appearance surrounding area. It will not be
an incongruous addition to the rear of the property and has been designed in
character of rear extensions in the immediate and surrounding environment with
materials to match the existing.

As such officers consider the proposal acceptable in terms of design and
appearance.

Community Infrastructure Levy

As of April 2010, new legislation in the form of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) came into force which allow ‘charging authorities’ in
England and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure that is
needed as a result of development. Since April 2012, the Mayor of London has been
charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm. The Council is progressing its own
CIL but this is not expected to be introduced until spring / summer 2014.

The proposed alterations and additions are not CIL liable.



7.1

7.2

8.1

Page 69

Conclusion

The proposed development would not detract from the character and appearance
of the subject property and surrounding area as viewed from the rear of the
property and would not have an adverse impact on the neighbours’ amenities in
accordance with Policies 3.14, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, Policy 4 and 30 of
the Core Strategy and Policies 6, 13, 37 and 38 of the Development
Management.

Recommendation

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved subject to the
following conditions:

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which forms part of this
notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

The external finishing materials shall match those used in the construction of the
existing building and/or areas of hard surfacing.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015, or any amending Order, no external
windows or doors other than those indicated on the approved drawings shall be
installed in the development hereby approved without the approval in writing of
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015, or any amending Order, no balustrades or
other means of enclosure shall be erected on the roof of the extension(s). No roof
of any part of the extension(s) shall be used for any recreational purpose and
access shall only be for the purposes of the maintenance of the property or
means of emergency escape.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties.



Page 70

38v LN IIIH sudnog Gzl

l0z/50/01 VvV ® [

0054
pasodoud/buisix3y 00 9MQd

o NY1d 0079

0ok:L

NOILYA313 3dIS ONILSIX3

|
: |
|
LR |
0044 | A\
s . Y0074 ANNOYD ONILSIXT ~
,
| |
7 = e 7
W I \\,j 7
| |
| ANOLVAMISNOD i
| - |
ﬁ |
00k ¢ A
NOILVATT3 ¥Ovd ONILSIX3 7 =" -
|
5 V | ] NOOY ONINIO V
V momsg 7
- | 7 — A V
. | Va ) 7
| , L Lok
| =
, | 7 / —
1L ! L —
: 7 Hi
REORE 7 zooHEm — 7
| |
ﬁ [N A 7
|
|

SONIMYYQ 3H1]
ONIVOS A8 STYINLYI ¥3GHO ¥O ONITTING 3HL LNOL3S LON 0a
“SINIW¥INOFY ALOHLAY TVIOT ANV DLV

40 300D ‘SQYVANVLS HSLL! LLYIND3¥ DNICTING LNF¥¥NO|
HLIM IDNVQYODDV NI LNO G3NA¥YD 38 OL 34V SRIOM T1v|
SHOM DNIDNIWWOD FH0438 LIS NO SNOILIGNOD TVHINID ONV|
SNNY NIV¥Q ‘SNOISNIWIQ TIV YD3HD OL T8V SYOLIVHINOD IHL]

SILON




Page 71

38y CIN [IIH suJnog GZ|

sLaz/

so/oL £V ® 0013l

00k:L

4004 43S0d0yd

# #
i oyweseeun  f
/ & #
9629 221 0£80 L J0
966 1-{[emALEd /4'A0B"LIdpO" MM WO1) 19PI00G UOITEULIOJuI
SONIMVAG 3H]

ONITVIS A8 STVI¥3 VA ¥IU0 HO DNICTING 3H1 1NO13S 1ON 00
“SLNINFYINDIY ALRIOHLAY TYIOT ONY IDLLIVYC|

40 3000 ‘S¥VANVLS HSILI¥S ‘SNOLLYIND3Y DNIGING LNF¥3ND|
HLIM DNVOUODIV NI LNO Q3N 38 OL 34¥ SHRIOM T1v|
HOM ONIDNIWWOD 34038 3LIS NO SNOLLIGNOD TvH3NID aNY|
SNNY NIVYQ 'SNOISNIWIO TIV XD3HD OL UV SYOLIVHINOD 3|

S11ON

Bugswco yoiew g
Do siopum o7
P

0041

NOILYAT 13 MOvd 3S0d0dd

99T

98G¢E

00b:1

Y0014 ANNOYO A3SOd0Yd

e SNOpU o%

At

N Y I 1

WOOHHLYE

00Kk

NOILVYA313 3dIS d3S0d0¥d

0867

000€

NZHOLIY

!

Gunsice Lopew o) s100p

DUE SHOPUA O\ M

4msix® Yojew O] usep 9f90ad

[ |

L

=

000€

SODUA A NAN

AR g
= ==
WOOY ONINIO
JONNOT

A
/ T
/ /
/L A

\\\\D

L

)Y

ooYa38
N \\

——
\\ e fewbuo woy woe

\
\

1By 341 01 paLiodas 3 1SN BUIMESp 2L Ul S3PUEAAISIP AUy
*sBummeIp Cous Buliedaid 10 0M BUPUAWILIOD 3103 3115

U0 SUOJSUBLUIP [[E AJLI3A 1S SIONENLOD JUASUOD UM JoLd 1N 30U
U1 40 L1ed uf PRINPOIAaI 3 10U 1S PUR 1BIACOD S| UBISIP PUE BUIMEIP SIUL




This page is intentionally left blank



Paqe 73 A cionda ltora O

L4 \3L’I TUatAv 1Lo 111 'V

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23" February 2016
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, Andy Higham Southgate Green
Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson

Mr Nathaniel Young
Ref: 15/05783/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 125A Bourne Hill, London, N13 4BE,

PROPOSAL: Rear dormer.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mrs Theodora Panteli Mr Amir Faizollahi
125 Bourne Hill 6 Bournwell Close

. . Hadley Wood
Winchmore Hill EN4 0IX
N13 4BE United Kingdom
RECOMMENDATION:

It is therefore recommended that the application is APPROVED subject to conditions.




Page 74

Ref: 15/05783/FUL LOCATION: 125A Bourne Hill, London, N13 4BE,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. ®
ENF(!;ELD’ Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




Page 75

A planning application of this nature would normally be determined under delegated authority.
However, the applicant occasionally works for the Building Control team within Development
Management and in accordance with the scheme of delegation; the application is reported to
Planning committee for consideration.

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the south side of Bourne Hill. It has a regular shape and is
approximately 348m? in area. It contains a two-storey semi-detached property that
has been converted into two flats.

The surrounding area is characterised by semi-detached properties some of which
have rear dormers.

Neighbouring properties No. 123 and 121 Bourne Hill contain rear roof dormers
with minimal insets from the roof ridges.

The site is not located within a conservation area and does not contain a listed
building.

Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for a rear roof dormer and two front
rooflights.

The roof dormer would be inset 0.5m from the roof edge, 0.5m from the eaves and
1.04m from the roof ridge.

The two new rooflights would be Velux style and located on the front elevation of
the roof.

Planning History

Site

TP/03/1777: Rear conservatory — 11/17/2003 — Granted.
TP/00/1572: Vehicular access to classified road — 22.11.2000 — Granted.
SOUTHGATE_5110: Two flats — 10.03.1965 — Granted.
Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

None.

Public response

The neighbours were notified of the application by mail (five letters).
No objections were received.

Relevant Policies



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Page 76

London Plan
Policy 3.14  Existing housing

Policy 7.4 Local character
Policy 7.6 Architecture

Core Strategy

Policy 4 Housing quality

Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

Development Management Document

DMD 6 Residential character

DMD 13 Roof extensions

DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design-led development
DMD 38 Design process

Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance

Analysis

Principle

The adopted policies encourage the maintenance and enhancement of existing
housing stock. However, the proposed development must be assessed in relation
to its impact on the character of the surrounding area and the neighbours’ amenity.

Impact on the character of the surrounding area

DMD 13 requires that roof extensions be of an appropriate size and location within
the roof plane and, in the case of roof dormers, inset from the eaves, ridge and
edges of the roof (insets should normally be between 500-750mm).

The proposed rear dormer would be appropriately inset from the roof edge (0.5m),
eaves (0.5m) and ridge (1.04m). It would not create any additional harm to the
character of the surrounding area than what has already been established by
neighbouring properties (No. 121 and 123 Bourne Hill). The proposed dormer’s
size would not be excessive and would sit comfortably within the rear roof plane. It
is therefore considered that the rear dormer would not have an undue impact on
the character and appearance of the property and the surrounding area.

Impact on the neighbours’ amenity

The rear dormer would not have an unacceptable impact on the neighbours’
amenity in terms of light or outlook due to the location within the roof slope. The
proposal would have a minimal impact on privacy as the proposed windows would
be at second floor level, however as the first floor windows below currently allow
views over the rear gardens of the adjoining properties and these properties
already have rear dormers within the roof slope it is considered that the proposal



6.8

6.9

7.1

8.1

Page 77

would simply result in mutual overlooking. As such officers consider the proposal
acceptable in terms of neighbouring amenity impact.

Community Infrastructure Levy

As of April 2010, new legislation in the form of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) came into force which allow ‘charging authorities’
in England and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain
types of qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of
infrastructure that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012, the
Mayor of London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm.

Is the development CIL liable? No.

Conclusion

The proposed development would not detract from the character and appearance
of the subject property and surrounding area as viewed from the rear of the
property and would not have an adverse impact on the neighbours’ amenities in
accordance with Policies 3.14, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, Policy 4 and 30 of
the Core Strategy and Policies 6, 13, 37 and 38 of the Development Management.

Recommendation

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved subject to the
following conditions:

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which forms part of this notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

The external finishing materials shall match those used in the construction of the
existing building and/or areas of hard surfacing.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending Order, no external windows
or doors other than those indicated on the approved drawings shall be installed in
the development hereby approved without the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties.



Page 78

38v €IN IIH 8uinog GZ1L

§10z/50/0L £Y ® 00L:L

100 OMmd

pasodoug/bupsix3

966 19V [[EM ALIEd 23 UIyum [[ef Aew Sxiom pasodoad ayL

[ 7

¥0014 1407 a3S0d0yd

g g

=

AN

NIHOLIY

00b:4

¥00Td4 1SHI4 ONILSIX3

SONIMVHG 3H1]
INITYIS A8 STYI¥ELYI ¥3QYO ¥O DNITTING FHL LNOLIS LON 0a
‘SINIWAYINDIY ALRIOHLNY VDO ANV 3DLLIVd|

40 300D ‘SAUVANVLS HSILI¥E ‘SNOLLYIND3M DNIATING LNF¥NO|
HLIM IDNVAY0DDV NI LNO G31¥3YD 38 OL 34V SHOM T1v|
MYOM ONIDNIWIWOD 340438 3LIS NO SNOLLIGNOD Tv¥IN3D ONV|
SNNY NIVHQ ‘SNOISNIWIQ TIV XD3HD OL 34V SYOLOVHLNOD 3HL]

iSILON

00b:1

NOILYAT 13 MOvE ONILSIX3

‘HHHH
L

=

swopu Ond

0041

NOILYAT 13 MOvE ONILSIXT

L

196y ay1 01 paviodas

uo suoisuawIp e Ay
U110 11ed 1 PRNPOICR 3 10U 1S PUE 1GHIACOY S1 UBISIP PUE BUIMEIP SIYL

0041

NOILYATT13 INOY4 d3SOd0dd

Ql
=0
«
o)
@
3
w
=8
=
>
@
m
S
Q
E
@
@
1t

2>
l
A
2.
ll
)
a
a
I
=3
)

—

HEN

Swopup X0

uopuo] ugIso

00k:1

NOILYATT13 INOY4 ONILSIX3

SN0 [peAw@ojur g

X[0 ¥NA ‘PooM A3[peH “2s0[D [[PMUINog 9 :V 900999 6£6L0 :L




NOTES:

ITHE CONTRACTORS ARE TO CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS, DRAIN RUNS

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

1:100

NN 0> [peAw@Oorul :q
X[0 PN ‘POOM A3[peH ‘9S0[D [[PMUINOG 9 7Y 900999 6€6.0 *L

DT,

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

3
2
& o
AR
a|e
[N}
o "
o <<
®
O o
=8
() -
T 2
[ ] <
I =
[ ] <
I a
&
o
o)
—
[a3]
8
=
S
=
<
Ll
m
Ll
=
w
o
Ll
w0
o
o
2|e
o=
. %
@

Verical ung tes to malch existing

uopuo u3rsa( el

Jaauibu3 Buipjing paisuey)

NJONYDIY

125 Bourne Hill N13 4BE




This page is intentionally left blank



Paqe 81 A cionda ltorna O

I 4 \3\;IIUM LA2 BB Y4
LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd February 2016
Report of Contact Officer: Ward: Haselbury

Assistant Director, Planning &
Environmental Protection

Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848
Kevin Tohill Tel: 020 8379 3841
Jennie Rebairo Tel: 020 8322

Application Number : 16/00009/HOU

LOCATION: 17 Orpington Gardens, London, N18 1LW

PROPOSAL: Installation of a pitched roof on an existing outbuilding (PART RETROSPECTIVE)

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Chris Neophitou

17 Orpington Gardens

N18 1LW

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Amir Faizollahi

6 Bournwell Close
Hadley Wood

EN4 0JX

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.




Page 82

Ref: 16/00009/HOU LOCATION: 17 Orpington Gardens, London, N18 1L W,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
ENF(!;ELD’ Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




Page 83

A planning application of this nature would normally be determined under delegated
authority. However, the agent occasionally works for the Building Control team within
Development Management and in accordance with the scheme of delegation; the application
is reported to Planning committee for consideration.

1.0

11

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

Site and Surroundings

The application site comprises a two storey end of terrace dwelling located on
Orpington Road. The property has been extended to the rear and within the roof
space.

The surrounding area is made up of similar style properties with reasonable sized rear
gardens. A number of outbuildings can be seen within the vicinity the majority of which
are low level.

Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for a new pitched roof over existing
outbuilding. The application is a resubmission of previous refusal for the following
reason:

The pitched roof over the existing outbuilding by virtue of its height appears dominant
and overbearing when viewed from the surrounding area, having an adverse impact on
the amenity value enjoyed by the residents of the surrounding properties out of
keeping with the pattern of development, and detrimental to the amenity and character
of the surrounding area, contrary to Local Plan Policy CP30 and Development
Management Document Policies DMD12 and DMD37.

The new pitched roof has been reduced in height to a total of 3 metres sloping down to
2.377 metres. This roof would replace the existing pitched roof the subject of
Enforcement Investigation and refused planning application Ref: 15/03884/HOU.

The existing outbuilding measures 6.8 metres in width and 6.2 metres in length.

Relevant Planning History

3.1 TP/09/1026 — part single, part 2-storey side & rear extension — granted — 14/09/2009

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

LDC/09/0284 — gable end & rear dormer — granted — 14/09/2009

15/03884/HOU - Alterations to existing outbuilding involving installation of pitched roof
over existing flat roof (retrospective) — Refused — 17/11/2015

ENF/15/0345 — outbuilding — investigation pending
Consultation

Public

Letters were sent to 5 adjoining and nearby residents on 29" January 2016. No
comments were received.

Internal and External Consultees




Page 84

4.2.1 None
5.0 Relevant Planning Policies
5.1 London Plan (2011/ REMA 2013)
Policy 7.4 - Local Character
5.2 Core Strategy (adopted November 2010)
CP30 - Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment
5.3 Development Management Development (adopted November 2014)

DMD8 — Residential Development

DMD12 - Outbuildings

DMD37 - Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development

5.4 Other Policy
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 Analysis

6.1 Impact on character and appearance of surrounding area

6.2 Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy requires new development to be of a high quality
design and in keeping with the character of the surrounding area. Policy DMD8 of the

Development Management Document seeks to ensure that development is high

quality, sustainable, has regard for and enhances local character and can meet the

existing and future needs of residents.
6.3 Policy DMD12 requires that outbuildings will only be permitted if all of the following
criteria are met:

a. The building must be ancillary to the use as a residential dwelling:

b. The design should have regard to topography;

c. It should not normally project forward of the front building line;

d. Maintaining adequate distance from the dwelling and be of an appropriate height
and bulk so as not to adversely impact on the character of the local area and
amenities of neighbouring properties;

e. The size, scale and siting of the development must not have an unacceptable
impact on the adjoining properties in line with relevant criteria in DMD 8 ‘General
Standards for New Residential Development’

6.4 Given the reasonable sized rear gardens of the properties in Orpington Gardens it is

not considered that the building would adversely impact on the residential amenities of
the adjoining properties in terms in loss of light or privacy given the intervening
distances.



6.5

7.0

7.1

8.0

Page 85

Overall the general design and appearance of the proposed outbuilding is considered
acceptable in this location, it is not considered that the height of 3 metres to the top of
the pitch would adversely impact on the amenities of the surrounding residents. The
outbuilding is constructed from breeze block with a render finish and its appearance is
considered satisfactory.

Conclusion

The proposed development would not result in any demonstrable harm to the character
and appearance of the surrounding area or the amenities of the adjoining properties to
warrant refusal of the application. The development is considered acceptable with
relevant planning policies of the London Plan and the Enfield Local Plan.

Recommendation

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved subject to the following
conditions:

The porposed pitched roof as shown on drawing number 001 shall replace the existing
roof over the outbuilding within 3 months of the date of this permission.

Reason: In the interest of the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

The external finishing materials shall match those used in the construction of the
existing building.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance.

The outbuilding shall be used for purposes solely incidental to the enjoyment of the
dwelling and shall not be used for any permanent habitable living accommodation.

Reason: In order to protect the residential amenities of surrounding residents.



Page 86

i
@001 P

PROPOSED
4112016

1:100/1:50 @ A3

DWG 002

] s
LOCATION PLAN 1:1250

[sXsXeXe)
{ooc ot

Ll ON

EXISTING BLOCK PLAN

Arepunog

8372

,,,,,,,,,,,,,
* NPILERCEEOL

""""""""""

- I

yn-od> [pedwgoyur :q Joauibug Buipjing pasayey)

X0 ¥NH ‘POOM A3[PeH ‘9S0[D [[PMUINOG 9 1V 900999 6€6£0 *L uopuo| UEISSG [e mioaiyory -




Page 87

90z €7 @ 0g:1/004: WV
. 035040¥d 100 9MA WJ
MD
1 NV1d 40014 03S0d0O¥d 9.
S e+
1. ! : P — o0
NOILVAZTH 30IS 0350d0dd NOILVAIT3 YOvE 03S0d0Yd %m.
\m\ “ WOOY 301440 Tn
: c )
TIvH =
39VHOLS | . a
@.
WAD /\H | 1l Qo
oM u
—
o
2.
NV1d 40014 ONILSIXT
NOLLYASTS 30IS G3SOd0Nd NOILYATT3 INOY4 43S0dO¥d m
i | - I 5o |
) m sapuBy m - )
SMopuItA DAN m.-J.
Y Q
39YHO0LS/INOOY 301440 m @
S8|1 Jooy uleld pu— | — SI|LL JOOy uield m
~
2
8
c
3
NOILYAT13 34IS ONILSIX3 NOILVATT3 30IS ONILSIX3 NOILYAZ T3 YOVe ONILSIXI NOILVAITH INO¥ ONILSIX3

5189 svee

1182

HD e

X[0 ¥NA ‘POOM A3peH “9s0[D [[PMUINog 9 °¥ 900999 6€6.0 -L




NY1d 40074 d3SOd0™d

<

ev@ ool f

Page 88

\ ;ﬂ
A~ NOILVAIT3 3AIS 3SOdO¥d NOLLYAT TS YOV Q3S0d0Nd
b ,, S9ylL jooy uieid
NOLLYAZT3 30IS 0350d0Nd NOILYA3 T3 INOY4 03S0d0¥d
, e ,
NY1d 40014 ONILSIX3 .
—— %
m m ﬂ SMODUIM DA
NOILYAT 13 INOH4 ONILSIX3
NOILYAT 13 3QIS ONILSIXT NOILYA3 T3 3QIS ONILSIXT

NOILVAZT3 MOVE ONILSIX3

Sl
5189

L8z




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 26 JANUARY 2016 AND 9 FEBRUARY 2016
	Draft Mins - 9 Feb 2016

	4 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION  (REPORT NO.190)
	5 15-03684-FUL - 654 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD EN3 6LZ
	6 15-04736-FUL - 2A/2B PARK AVENUE, LONDON N18 2UH
	7 15-05782-FUL - 125 BOURNE HILL, LONDON N13 4BE
	8 15-05783-FUL - 125A BOURNE HILL, LONDON N13 4BE
	9 16-00009-HOU - 17 ORPINGTON GARDENS, LONDON N18 1LW

